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Management Discussion and Analysis
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GENERAL OVERVIEW

For the consolidated annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(altogether the “Group”) for the year ended 31st December, 2010, the Board of
Directors of the Company (the “Board”) is glad to report a consolidated profit
after taxation attributable to shareholders of the Company of approximately
HK$186.84 million (2009: HK$66.29 million) and a basic earnings per
share of 7.16 HK cents (2009: 2.54 HK cents). The net profit of the Group
for the year of 2010 was nearly three times that for the year of 2009, mainly
attributable to a substantial increase in share of results of an associate.

The Group shared a profit of approximately HK$160.15 million (2009:
HK$47.51 million) from an associate engaged in property development and
investment in Shanghai for the year ended 31st December, 2010. On the other
hand, the Group recorded a net gain of approximately HK$15.84 million
(2009: HK$13.58 million) from its securities trading in Hong Kong and
entitled to a dividend income of approximately HK$21.99 million (2009:
HK$8.77 million) from a long-term securities investment in Hong Kong
during the year under review.

(Shanghai Boulevard Real Estate

Co., Limited)
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As at 31st December, 2010, the equity attributable to the shareholders of the
Company was approximately HK$1,661.28 million (2009: HK$1,498.11
million) as a whole and HK$0.64 (2009: HK$0.57) per share.

DIVIDEND

The Board recommends payment of a final dividend of HK$0.015 per share
for the year ended 31st December, 2010 (2009: HK$0.02 per share) so as to
retain sufficient fund for potential property development and investment of
the Group. The final dividend would be payable to the shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on Thursday, 2nd
June, 2011 subject to the shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company. Dividend warrants are expected for dispatch
on Wednesday, 15th June, 2011.

OPERATIONS REVIEW

Property development and investment in Shanghai and securities trading and
investment in Hong Kong were the principal activities of the Group for the
year under review. In addition, the Group also held an investment property
and trivial properties for sale in Macau.

Shanghai Zhangjiang Micro-electronics Port Co. Ltd., an associate of the
Group engaged in property development and investment in Shanghai, was the
principal source of profit of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2010
and contributed a significant profit of approximately HK$160.15 million
(2009: HK$47.51 million) to the Group for the year under review.

On the other hand, there was an increase in the operating profit of the Group
to approximately HK$36.49 million for the year of 2010 (2009: HK$21.06
million). The operating results of the Group for the year under review were
mainly attributable to securities trading and investment in Hong Kong and
a segment profit of approximately HK$37.80 million (2009: HK$22.35
million) was recorded. For property development and investment in Shanghai
and Macau by the subsidiaries of the Group, since the residential area of the
sole property development project of the Group in Shanghai has completely
sold in previous financial years, revenue for the year under review was derived
from sale proceeds and rental income of the car parks in Shanghai and
negligible rental income generated in Macau. Taking account of the operating
expenses, the property development and investment segment of the Group
recorded a loss of approximately HK$0.85 million (2009: HK$1.91 million)

for the year under review.
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Property Development and Investment

kil REEFEARA
(Shanghai Boulevard Real Estate Co., Limited)

Shanghai Boulevard Real Estate Co., Limited, a 93.53%-owned subsidiary
of the Company, now holds hundreds of car parks in its sole residential
development, namely Tomson Beautiful Space, in Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park,
Pudong, Shanghai (the “Park”). For the year ended 31st December, 2010,
income from sale and leasing of the car parks was the sole source of operating
revenue of the subsidiary and accounted for approximately 0.6% of the
Group’s gross proceeds from operations. This operating segment generated a
profit before taxation of approximately HK$4.60 million for the year under
review after taking into account its interest income.

The Group intends to make use of the retained fund of the subsidiary to
acquire properties in the Mainland China for leasing purpose so as to increase
its capital return.
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Shanghai Zhangjiang Micro-electronics Port Co. Ltd.

Shanghai Zhangjiang Micro-electronics Port Co. Ltd. (“SZMP”), an associate
of the Group which holds a 37% interest in its registered capital, has engaged
in residential, office and commercial property development and investment
in the Park and possesses a land bank of a site area of around 15,000 square
meters therein for future development. SZMP derived its major revenue
from sale of its residential project as well as leasing its office buildings and
commercial centre, and shared a profit from its associate, I #5R% TLAI ZE R
%8 A PR\ W (Shanghai Zhangjiang Chuang Ye Yuan Technological
Development Ltd.). For the year ended 31st December, 2010, SZMP reported
a profit of approximately HK$432.85 million and the Group shared a profit of
approximately HK$160.15 million.

Zhangjiang Tomson Garden

SZMP has scheduled to develop a residential project in the Park, namely
Zhangjiang Tomson Garden, in four phases. The first two phases of the
development were completed years ago.
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Construction of the first stage of Phase 3 (that is Phase 3A) of the project was
completed in 2010 and all 728 apartment units with a total residential gross
floor area of approximately 69,100 square meters in 12 blocks of apartment
buildings of ten to twelve storeys were pre-sold in 2009. The sale proceeds were
recognised in the annual results of SZMP for the year ended 31st December,
2010 after obtaining real estate ownership certificate in the second half of
2010.

The second stage of Phase 3 (that is Phase 3B) of the project will provide
803 apartment units with a total residential gross floor area of approximately
78,500 square meters in 16 blocks of apartment buildings of five to eleven
storeys. Out of the residential gross floor area of approximately 49,000 square
meters earmarked for sale, over 80% were pre-sold in 2010. The remaining
residential gross floor area of approximately 29,500 square meters will be
retained for leasing purpose. It is scheduled for completion and ready for
handover to the residents within 2011. Hence, it is expected that the pre-sale
proceeds will be recognised in the annual results of SZMP for 2011.

Construction of Phase 4 of the project with a total gross floor area of

approximately 227,000 square meters commenced in December 2009 and is
targeted to be completed by two stages in 2012 and 2013 respectively.
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Zbangjiang Micro-electronics Port

Zhangjiang Micro-electronics Port comprises nine blocks of intellectual office
buildings, car parks and ancillary buildings in the Park. Apart from sale of
two office blocks, the remaining seven blocks of the project are earmarked for
leasing purpose. As at 31st December, 2010, SZMP held a total rentable gross

floor area of approximately 88,100 square meters of which approximately 76%
were let.
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Shanghai Chuan Qi

A commercial centre, Shanghai Chuan Qi provides a total usable gross floor
area of nearly 16,800 square meters for leasing purpose and an occupancy rate
of approximately 77% was recorded as at 31st December, 2010. Food and
beverage industry is the major tenant of the commercial centre.

Zhangjiang Chuang Ye Yuan Office Development
USIN: EX T 2 L]

Zhangjiang Chuang Ye Yuan Office and Commercial Development

SZMP holds a 45% interest in L3R VLA E B 48 B A RA A
(Shanghai Zhangjiang Chuang Ye Yuan Technological Development Ltd.,
“Chuang Ye Yuan”). Chuang Ye Yuan has developed office and commercial
buildings of a total gross floor area of over 90,000 square meters in the Park.
As at 31st December, 2010, except a hostel and underground car parks, all
the other office and commercial buildings were sold. Chuang Ye Yuan made a
sound contribution to the results of SZMP in 2010.

- g f Ay

LA AR R A A
Eﬁt%sm%ﬁ*%ﬁ%mﬁ’Ii_?
TEF A= — HEBSHARL77% o %8
RGP T ERFEKE -

Shanghai Chuan Qi L 7 f 7

VIR EX VYT EFN: LN

R Tl A A A LR LA SRR B R
HIRAF (THIZEWE]) Z245%ME 4% - BIEFED
V&@Emﬁﬁwﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ #90,000°F- J5
KZHEARTERSE - N F—FF T A
=t—H> B—FREME KM TNERESN A
HAb WA R EERBOBEE S - SIZEES
METFHEARZ B — BT R ARG
M E R o



Management Discussion and Analysis

CE SN ¥ E

Acquisition of land for development

SZMP has acquired land use rights of a plot of land in Shanghai in December
2010 by auction at a consideration of approximately RMB1,206 million for
development of residential and commercial purposes and the consideration
was paid in full in January 2011. It is expected the total gross floor area of the
development will amount to 193,000 square meters and the construction will
commence in 2012.

Securities Trading and Investment

The Group has invested in various listed securities in Hong Kong for trading
and long-term investment. Securities trading and investment was the principal
source of gross proceeds from operations of the Group for the year under
review.

During the year ended 31st December, 2010, proceeds from disposal of and
dividend receipt from the securities investments held for trading accounted
for approximately 88.6% of the Group’s gross proceeds from operations. After
taking account of an unrealized loss on change in fair value of the trading
securities of approximately HK$1.90 million, a net gain in trading securities of
approximately HK$15.84 million was recorded for the year under review.

On the other hand, as at 31st December, 2010, the Group held an
approximately 12.12% interest in the total issued capital of Tomson Group
Limited (“TGL”), a listed company in Hong Kong and one of the major
property developers in Pudong, Shanghai, as a long-term investment. A special
dividend of approximately HK$21.99 million from TGL was entitled in
2010 and accounted for approximately 10.8% of the Group’s gross proceeds
from operations for the year under review. In addition, an unrealized gain on
change in fair value of such investment of approximately HK$2.61 million
was credited to the investment revaluation reserve of the Group for the year of
2010 according to applicable accounting standards.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity and Financing

There was no change in the Group’s capital structure during the year ended
31st December, 2010 and the Group’s operations and investments for the
year under review were mainly funded by its cash on hand and revenue from
investing activities.
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As at 31st December, 2010, the cash and cash equivalents of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$647.74 million. During the year under
review, the Group’s investing activities generated a net cash inflow of
approximately HK$63.96 million. After taking into account a net cash outflow
of approximately HK$28.93 million from operating activities of the Group
and a dividend payment of approximately HK$52.17 million by the Company,
the net cash outflow of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2010
amounted to approximately HK$17.14 million (2009: HK$31.60 million).
The decrease in cash balance in 2010 was mainly attributable to the payment of
final dividend of the Company for the year 2009 and an increase in securities
investments held for trading.

The Group had no borrowing as at the end of the reporting period (2009: Nil).
Of the liabilities of the Group, approximately 93% were due for repayment
within one year from the end of the reporting period while the balance was
deferred tax liabilities related to undistributed earnings of SZMP, the Group’s
associate.

As at 31st December, 2010, the Group recorded a current ratio of 6.24 times
(2009: 6.27 times) and a gearing ratio (total liabilities to equity attributable to
owners of the Company) of 7.59% (2009: 7.66%). There was no significant
change in both the current ratio and gearing ratio in the years of 2009 and
2010.

In addition, the Group had no capital commitment (2009: Nil) in respect of
expenditure on property development which has been contracted for but not
provided in the financial statements for 2010.

Charge on Assets

No asset of the Group was subject to any charge as at 31st December, 2010
(2009: Nil).

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The majority of the Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in
Renminbi, and the liabilities are well covered by the assets. The management
therefore expects that the change in value of Renminbi will not have any
adverse effect on the Group since Renminbi has generally been perceived as
having potential to appreciate in value relative to Hong Kong Dollars. On the
other hand, all of the other assets and liabilities of the Group are denominated
in either Hong Kong Dollars or Macau Pataca, hence, the Group does not
expect any significant exchange risk exposure.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no contingent liabilities at 31st December, 2010 (2009: Nil).
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PROSPECT

The Group decides to maintain property development and investment as well

as securities trading and investment as its principal operating segments.

Mainland China will remain the focus of the Group’s property development
and investment segment. SZMP, being the Group’s associate, will keep on its
property development business in Shanghai while the Board is planning to
acquire appropriate properties through subsidiaries of the Group for leasing
or trading purposes so that the Group can not only further its business in
property development but also enhance its recurrent income. In addition,
after reviewing the property portfolio in Macau and having confidence in the
growth therein, the Group acquired a quality residential property for leasing
or trading purpose in Macau in the first quarter of 2011. The Group will also
actively work with its joint venture partner to contemplate a feasible plan
to maximize the development potential of its investment property in Macau
and accommodate the local government plan. Nevertheless, revenue from the
investment in the real estate sector of the Group itself may be limited in short
run and share of results of SZMP will remain the major source of profit of the
Group in 2011.

On the other hand, the Group will increase its resources in securities trading
and investment in Hong Kong to diversify its business portfolio and maximize
its return to cash balance. Nevertheless, the Board will monitor fluctuation in
the global financial market and be cautious in managing the Group’s securities
trading and investment.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group engaged less than 10 full time employees in its various offices
in Hong Kong, Macau and Shanghai as at 31st December, 2010. The
total emoluments of the Group for the year under review amounted to
approximately HK$2.06 million including retirement benefits scheme
contributions.

The Group has always emphasized the importance of a highly-efficient staff
management and incentive structure. Emoluments paid to salaried staff and
directors of the Group are determined by reference to market terms, individual
responsibilities and performance. In addition, the Company has adopted a
share option scheme pursuant to which directors and employees of the Group
are eligible to be granted options to subscribe for shares in the capital of the
Company as a long-term incentive.

Taking this opportunity, the Board would like to express its gratitude to all the

staff members of the Group for their dedication and hard work over the years.

On behalf of the Board
Liu Xiaolong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25th March, 2011
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The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) is committed to
maintaining good corporate governance standard and procedures which
emphasize a quality management, transparency and accountability to all

shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles and complied with the code
provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the
“Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
during the year 2010 except that:

(a) in contrast to the Code Provision A.4.1 of the Code, the non-executive
Directors (whether independent or not) of the Company are not
appointed for a specific term, however, they are subject to retirement
and re-election at least once every three years at annual general
meetings of the Company; and

(b) the Company has not set up a remuneration committee pursuant to the
Code Provision B.1.1 of the Code as only independent non-executive
Directors of the Company were entitled to fee and just one executive
Director was remunerated in 2010. The Board was responsible for
reviewing and evaluating the emoluments of the said Directors and
those Directors or any of their associates have not been involved in
deciding their own emoluments.

THE BOARD

The Board is composed of nine members, including five executive Directors,
Mr Liu Xiaolong (Chairman), Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Tong Albert, Mr Gu
Yiwei and Madam Xu Mei; one non-executive Director, Mr Sung Tze-Chun;
and three independent non-executive Directors, Mr Liang Jung-chi, Mr Zhang
Hong Bin and Mr Sit Hing Kwok. Biographical details of the Directors and
relevant relationships among them together with their respective roles in the
Board and its committees are set out in the Profile of the Directors and Officers
on pages 20 to 22.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company represent one-
third of the Board and one of them has the appropriate professional accounting
qualifications as required by the Listing Rules. The Company has received
from each of its independent non-executive Directors an annual written
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and considers all of the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.
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The Board always acts in the best interests of the Company and its subsidiaries
(altogether the “Group”), and the shareholders. The principal functions of the
Board are to formulate strategy, to consider and approve the Group’s major
corporate matters, to monitor and control significant operational and financial
matters of the Group. The non-executive Directors have contributed valuable
independent views and proposals for the Board’s deliberation and decisions.

The Board meets regularly throughout each year. The Company Secretary
assists the Chairman of the Board in setting the agenda for regular Board
meetings and all Directors are consulted whether to include matters in the
agenda. Notice of at least 14 days is given for any regular Board meeting and
agenda together with accompanying board papers are given to all Directors in a
timely manner before the date of meeting. Drafts and final versions of minutes
of the regular Board meetings are circulated to the Directors for comment and
record respectively within a reasonable time after each meeting. During the
year 2010, four regular meetings were held by the Board and the Chairman
of the Board had an annual interchange with all the non-executive Directors
(including the independent ones) of the Company without the other executive
Directors present.

The Board has established an executive committee and an audit committee
(collectively the “Committees”) with clear written terms of reference to
oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and to assist in sharing
the Board’s responsibilities. The Board, led by the Chairman, has reserved
for its decision or consideration matters covering corporate strategy, annual
and interim results, changes of members of the Board and the Commicttees,
major acquisitions, disposals and capital transactions, and other significant
operational and financial matters. The Committees have to report regularly
to the Board on their decisions and recommendations. The management is
responsible for implementing the strategies and plans adopted by the Board
and the Committees.

All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis of major changes that may
affect the Group’s business, including relevant rules and regulations. The
Board has agreed on a procedure to enable the Directors to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense, to
assist them to discharge their duties.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify its
Directors for their liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The insurance
coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.
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Executive Committee

The Company did not appoint any chief executive officer but the Board has
established an executive committee (the “Executive Committee”) with written
terms of reference since August 2005 and the Chairman of the Board for
the time being is not a member. There is a segregation of duties between the
responsibility of the Chairman of the Board for leadership and management of
the Board and the responsibility of the Executive Committee to deal with the
day-to-day management of the Company’s business.

The Executive Committee is composed of four executive Directors of
the Company, namely Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Tong Albert, Mr Gu Yiwei
and Madam Xu Mei. Madam Hsu Feng is the chairman of the Executive
Committee.

Audit Committee

An audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) was established in April 1999 by
the Board with written terms of reference. The Audit Committee is composed
of all the independent non-executive Directors of the Company, namely Mr
Liang Jung-chi, Mr Zhang Hong Bin and Mr Sit Hing Kwok. Mr Zhang
Hong Bin who possesses appropriate professional accounting qualifications as
required by the Listing Rules is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

Under its terms of reference, the Audit Committee is required to review the
accounting policies and practices adopted by the Group, to monitor integrity
of the financial statements of the Company, to evaluate the overall effectiveness
of the internal control and risk management frameworks of the Group and
to oversee the relationship with the Company’s auditor (the “Auditor”). The
terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the Company’s
website.

During the year 2010, the Audit Committee met three times to discharge its
duties for reviewing the interim and annual financial statements as well as
the audit matters of the Group, evaluating the internal control system of the
Group, and considering the engagement of the Auditor and provision of non-
audit services by the Auditor. In March 2011, the Audit Committee held a
meeting to review the annual financial statements of the Group for 2010 and
consider the re-appointment of the Auditor.

The Audit Committee recommended the Board to approve the Group’s
financial statements and consider the re-appointment of the Auditor at annual
general meetings of the Company. The Audit Committee concluded that
the internal control system of the Group was effective in 2010 and satisfied
with the resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training programmes

and budgets.
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Attendance Records at Meetings

The attendance of the individual Directors at the regular meetings of the Board
and the meetings of the Audit Committee held during the year ended 31st
December, 2010 is set out below:

R R e ek

MREEREE X -FFE+_A=+—H
IHEERRT 2 EERENTRLFLEZ R
R RS

Number of meetings
attended / held
A V& TR E 14
Audit
Committee

HEHRRHA

Board
L 30

Executive Directors Hir &g

M Liu Xiaolong (Chairman of the Board) BUNSES A (HF T
Madam Hsu Feng & f Lt

Mr Tong Albert & TR ek

Mr Gu Yiwei BRI

Madam Xu Mei #F Bkt

FEPAT P
RVUH St

Non-Executive Director
Mr Sung Tze-Chun

18 3 Ik P AT

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr Liang Jung-chi U Y e

Mr Zhang Hong Bin L Wi
(Chairman of Audit Committee) (FEBRELSETFE)

Mr Sit Hing Kwok A DL [ o A

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

According to the Articles of Association of the Company, new Directors
could be elected by the Company or appointed by the Board. Any Director so
appointed by the Board shall hold office only until the next following general
meeting of the Company in the case of filling a casual vacancy or until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company in the case of an addition to
the Board and the retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election.

The Company has not set up a nomination committee pursuant to
recommended best practices of the Code and the Board is responsible for
reviewing its own structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience of its members), and identifying, selecting and
considering any appointment of its own members and considering nomination
of its retiring members for re-election by the shareholders in the general
meetings. The Board is also responsible for assessing the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors.

2/4 N/A A8 A
4/4 N/A A7
4/4 N/A A3
4/4 N/A A8 A
3/4 N/A A7
4/4 N/A A8 A
4/4 3/3
4/4 3/3
4/4 3/3
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Every newly appointed Director will be given a comprehensive orientation
package, including the latest information of the Group, induction into their
responsibilities and duties and other related regulatory requirements.

During the year under review, no new members were appointed to the Board
and at a regular Board meeting which was attended by a majority of the
Directors, namely Mr Liu Xiaolong, Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Tong Albert, Mr
Gu Yiwei, Mr Sung Tze-Chun, Mr Liang Jung-chi, Mr Zhang Hong Bin and
M:r Sit Hing Kwok, all retiring members were nominated for re-election at
the 2010 annual general meeting of the Company. At a regular meeting held
in March 2011, the Board nominated those Directors of the Company who
will retire by rotation at the 2011 annual general meeting of the Company for
re-election at that general meeting.

Remuneration of Directors

As disclosed above, no remuneration committee was set up. Emoluments
payable to the Directors of the Company are determined by the Board with
reference to market terms, individual responsibilities and performance and
subject to the authorization of the shareholders of the Company in fixing the
fee of the Directors. In addition, the Company has adopted a share option
scheme pursuant to which the Directors of the Company are eligible for being
granted options to subscribe for shares in the capital of the Company as a long-
term incentive.

Details of the emoluments paid to the Directors of the Company during 2010
are set out in Note 12(a) to the consolidated financial statements on pages 72

and 73.

The Board has reviewed the remuneration policy of the Company and
discussed the emoluments payable to one executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors of the Company at one of its regular
meetings held in 2010 which was attended by a majority of the Directors,
namely Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Tong Albert, Mr Gu Yiwei, Madam Xu Mei,
Mr Sung Tze-Chun, Mr Liang Jung-chi, Mr Zhang Hong Bin and Mr Sit
Hing Kwok, with interested Directors abstained from voting on the relevant
resolutions. The Board also approved payment of emoluments to another
executive Director of the Company at its regular meeting held in March 2011.

CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted its own code of practice for securities transactions
by the Directors and the relevant employees (the “Code of Practice”) on terms
no less exacting than the required standard of the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the

Listing Rules (the “Model Code”).

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors of the Company, each of whom
has confirmed compliance with the required standard set out in the Model
Code and the Code of Practice throughout the year.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Internal Control

The Board is responsible for ensuring that a proper and effective system
of internal control is maintained within the Group in order to safeguard
the shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets. The Company has
adopted its own codes on internal control for itself and its subsidiaries since
2005 in respect of all material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management functions. The codes on
internal control are reviewed regularly and modified pursuant to operational
requirements of the Group.

The Board has authorized the Audit Committee to review the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control system at least once a year and the Audit
Committee held a meeting in 2010 for that purpose. The Board, through the
review of the Audit Committee, is satisfied that the Group has fully complied
with all the applicable provisions of the Group’s codes on internal control
during the year ended 31st December, 2010 and considers that the Group’s
internal control system was effective and adequate.

The Board also considers that, after a review made by the Audit Committee,
the resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function are adequate, and their training
programmes and budgets are sufficient.

Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements of the Group for
each financial period. In preparing the financial statements for the year ended
31st December, 2010, the Directors have selected appropriate accounting
policies and applied them consistently; have made judgments and estimates
that were prudent and reasonable; and have prepared the financial statements
on a going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the Auditor to the shareholders are to form an
independent opinion, based on the audit, on those financial statements and
their opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31st December, 2010 is set out in the independent Auditor’s report
on pages 36 and 37.
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Auditor’s Remuneration

The fees in respect of audit and non-audit services provided to the Group
by the Auditor for the year ended 31st December, 2010 amounted to
approximately HK$954,000 and HK$43,000 respectively. The non-audit
services provided during the year were taxation services.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board maintains a continuing dialogue with the Company’s shareholders
through various channels including the Company’s annual general meetings.
Representatives of the Board including the Chairman of the Board and
chairman of the Audit Committee attended the 2010 annual general meeting

of the Company to answer questions regarding the performance of the Group.

In order to further enhance communication with the shareholders of the
Company and enable the Company’s shareholders to have a timely and
updated information of the Group, the Company has set up its own website
at http://www.rivera.com.hk where the corporate information, interim
and annual reports, announcements, circulars and other information of the
Company are posted.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Liu Xiaolong, aged 54, has been appointed as an executive Director of the
Company and has been elected as Chairman of the Board of Directors of the
Company (the “Board”) since December 2005. He has also acted as a director
of FERHEEEAMAF (Shanghai Boulevard Real Estate Co., Limited,
“Boulevard Real Estate”), a major subsidiary of the Company in Shanghai,
since January 2006.

Mr Liu is qualified as a Senior Engineer in the Mainland China. He was also
elected as a deputy to the 3rd National People’s Congress of Pudong New Area
of Shanghai City in December 2006.

Mr Liu was the party secretary and the general manager of Shanghai
Waigaoqiao Free Trade Zone Xin Development Co., Ltd. during the period
from November 2000 to October 2005. He now acts as the vice party secretary
and the executive vice general manager of Shanghai Zhangjiang (Group) Co.,
Ltd., one of the substantial shareholders of the Company. In addition, Mr
Liu is a non-executive director of MicroPort Scientific Corporation, a listed
company in Hong Kong.

Mr Liu and Mr Gu Yiwei, an executive Director of the Company, are
respectively a director and the general manager of Shanghai Zhangjiang Hi-
Tech Park Development Co., Ltd. (“Zhangjiang Hi-Tech”), a company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and one of the substantial shareholders of the
Company. Mr Liu is also the president and a shareholder of Zhangjiang Hi-
Tech.

Madam Hsu Feng, aged 60, has been appointed a Director of the Company
since January 1990 and the chairman of the Executive Committee of the Board
since August 2005. She is now an executive Director of the Company and a
director of the subsidiaries of the Company. She has over 10 years’ experience
in film production, and in property development and investment as well as
retail industry in Taiwan. She has been engaged in the property development
and leisure activities in the Mainland China in recent years.

Madam Hsu is the mother of Mr Tong Albert and Mr Tong Chi Kar
Charles, an executive Director and a substantial shareholder of the Company
respectively, and all act as executive directors of Tomson Group Limited
(“TGL”), a listed company in Hong Kong and a substantial shareholder of the
Company within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the

“SFO”). Madam Hsu is also the chairman, managing director and substantial

shareholder of TGL.

Besides, pursuant to the SFO, Madam Hsu together with her parties acting in
concert, Mr Tong Albert and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, have an interest in
779,274,488 shares in the capital of the Company.
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Profile of the Directors and Officers
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Mr Tong Albert, aged 28, has been appointed as an executive Director of the
Company and a director of a number of its subsidiaries since March 2001. He
has also been appointed as a member of the Executive Committee of the Board
since August 2005. He has been engaged in business development, corporate
management, property trading and securities investment in recent years. He
is a son of Madam Hsu Feng and a brother of Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, an
executive Director and a substantial shareholder of the Company respectively,
and all act as executive directors of TGL. He is also the vice-chairman and

substantial shareholder of TGL.

Besides, pursuant to the SFO, Mr Tong Albert together with his parties acting
in concert, Madam Hsu Feng and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, are taken to have
an interest in 779,274,488 shares in the capital of the Company.

Mr Tong Albert will be entitled to an annual basic salary of HK$715,000 with
effect from Ist April, 2011 as emoluments for his services in management
of the Group in his capacity as an executive Director of the Company as
determined by the Board with reference to his responsibilities and market

conditions.

Mr Gu Yiwei, aged 46, has been appointed as an executive Director of the
Company, a member of the Executive Committee of the Board and a director
of Boulevard Real Estate since August 2008.

He is a certified public accountant in the Mainland China. He has taken
up various financial management posts in Siemens (China) Ltd., Shanghai
Institute of Microsystem & Information Technology of Chinese Academy of
Sciences and KLA-Tencor Corp.. From December 2006 up to August 2008, he
acted as the chief financial officer (China Region) of Sud-Chemie Corp.. He

has over 10 years’ experience in financial management.

Mr Gu and Mr Liu Xiaolong, the Chairman of the Board, are respectively
the general manager and a director of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech. Mr Gu is also a
shareholder of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech.

Madam Xu Mei, aged 56, has been appointed as an executive Director of the
Company since February 2005 and a member of the Executive Committee
of the Board since August 2005. She was the section head of Personnel
Department and a vice-researcher of Shanghai Jiao Tong University. She
has also acted as a vice-president of Shanghai Sun Tong Technology Group
Limited since 1996. She has extensive experience in management.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr Sung Tze-Chun, aged 60, has been appointed as a non-executive Director
of the Company since January 2006 and was an executive Director of the
Company until December 2003. He is a fellow member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Directors. He has about 20 years’ experience in retail, property
development and marketing in Taiwan and has about 25 years” experience in
aspects of financial analysis and management. He has taken part in business
development, corporate management and property development in the
Mainland China and Hong Kong. He has also provided consultancy services
on business and investment management in Taiwan. Mr Sung is a consultant
of TGL. In addition, he is now the general consultant of the group operation
committee of Yungtay Engineering Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Taiwan
Stock Exchange) and a director of its subsidiary, [ K KB M A RA
Al

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Liang Jung-chi, aged 63, has been appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company since February 1994 and a member of the
Audit Committee of the Board since April 1999. He is a physician in Taiwan.

Mr Zhang Hong Bin, aged 37, has been appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company and the chairman of the Audit Committee
of the Board since April 2005. He is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of The Chinese Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and also has a lawyer’s qualification in the

Mainland China. He has years of experience in financial management.

Mr Sit Hing Kwok, aged 62, has been appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company and a member of the Audit Committee
of the Board since July 2007. He has been engaged on supervisory job in
journalism for over 20 years. From 1992 up to September 2009, Mr Sit
was a director of United Daily News Limited in Hong Kong. He was also a
director of the Hong Kong news bureau of the United Daily News Group until
September 2009. He is now a freelance writer and a lecturer of the Department
of Journalism & Communication of Hong Kong Shue Yan University after
retiring from the above positions.

OFFICERS

Ms Lee Yuen Han, aged 44, has joined the Group since 1991 and was
appointed the Company Secretary of the Company in March 1998.

Mr Kwok Sau King, aged 52, has joined the Group since 1990 and was
appointed the Financial Controller of the Company in September 1999.
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Report of the Directors
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The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) is pleased to present
its Report together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (altogether the “Group”) for the year ended 31st
December, 2010 and the independent Auditor’s report thereon.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group during the year were property
development and investment as well as securities trading and investment.

During the year under review, the Company acted as an investment holding
company while the principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s
principal subsidiaries are listed out in Note 16 to the consolidated financial

statements on pages 77 and 78.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

Details of the Group’s results for the year ended 31st December, 2010 and the
Group’s financial position as at the end thereof are set out on pages 38 to 86.
An analysis by operating segments and geographical location is set out in Note

8 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 65 to 69.
No interim dividend was paid during the year (2009: Nil).

The Board recommends payment of a final dividend of HK$0.015 per share
for the year ended 31st December, 2010 (2009: HK$0.02 per share) to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the Company
on Thursday, 2nd June, 2011 subject to the shareholders’ approval at the

forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 31st
May, 2011 to Thursday, 2nd June, 2011, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares of the Company will be effected.

In order to qualify for the proposed 2010 final dividend, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s share registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited at 26th Floor, Tesbury
Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Monday, 30th May, 2011 for registration.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Of the gross proceeds from operations and purchases of the Group for the
year, less than 30% was attributable to the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers respectively.

DONATIONS

No donations for charitable or other purposes were made by the Group during
the year.

FIXED ASSETS

During the year ended 31st December, 2010, the Group added fixed assets
amounting to approximately HK$5,000 (2009: HK$2,000) and wrote off
assets with an aggregate net book value of approximately HK$1,000 (2009:
Nil).

Movements in fixed assets of the Group and of the Company during the year

are shown in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 75 and

76.

A schedule of the principal properties held by the Group, for sale or investment
purposes, is set out on page 87.

BORROWINGS AND DEBENTURES

There were no bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 31st
December, 2010.

No debentures of any class were issued by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, or were in issue, at any time during the year.

None of interest expenses of the Group were capitalised during the year.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31st December, 2010, 2,608,546,511 ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each
in the capital of the Company were in issue and the Company did not issue or
repurchase any shares in its capital during the year under review.

Details of the share capital of the Company are shown in Note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements on page 81.
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Report of the Directors
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st December, 2010, there was no purchase, sale or
redemption by the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, of the Company’s listed
securities.

RESERVES

The distributable reserves of the Company as at 31st December, 2010
amounted to approximately HK$193,954,000 (2009: HK$250,418,000).

Movements in reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year are
shown in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and Note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements on pages 42 and 82 respectively.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and financial position of the Group for the preceding
five financial years is set out on page 91.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company as at the date of this Report and those who were
in office during the year are:

Name of Directors

Executive Directors

Mr Liu Xiaolong (Chairman)
Madam Hsu Feng

Mr Tong Albert

Mr Gu Yiwei

Madam Xu Mei

Non-Executive Director

Mr Sung Tze-Chun

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr Liang Jung-chi

Mr Zhang Hong Bin

Mr Sit Hing Kwok

A profile of the Directors of the Company is shown on pages 20 to 22.
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Information relating to emoluments paid to the Company’s Directors during
the year is set out in Note 12(a) to the consolidated financial statements on

pages 72 and 73.

All Directors of the Company, including the non-executive Directors (no
matter independent or not), are subject to retirement by rotation at annual
general meetings of the Company in accordance with the Company’s Articles
of Association. Articles 77 to 79 provide that at every annual general meeting,
one-third of the Directors for the time being or, if their number is not three or
a multiple of three, then the nearest number to but not less than one-third shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. The Directors to retire in
every year shall be those who have been longest in office since their last election
and shall be eligible for re-election. In this connection, Madam Xu Mei, Mr
Sit Hing Kwok and Mr Tong Albert will retire by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election.

The re-election of the retiring Directors of the Company is subject to the
shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company and details of those Directors will be disclosed in a circular of the
Company to be despatched to the shareholders together with the notice of the
annual general meeting.

None of the Directors of the Company proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting have an unexpired service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
employing company within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SECURITIES

As at 31st December, 2010, the interests and short positions of the Directors
of the Company in shares, debentures and underlying shares of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO?”)), which were required, pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein
(including interests and short positions which they were taken to have under
Section 344 of the SFO) or which were required to be notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), were as follows:

(1) The Company:

o g 2l I B A B R AT

A B -EBEFCASt R AAALHE
S AR 28 ) BCHC T A B (2 T
U 1) XV 2 B TR B 2 Ml - (e
R 5 o B 2 3 000 5 0 )
5535218 2 ML S LA 220 9T 0 %5 T
(LT L0 Gl 0 % J0) L0 91 45 344008 91 2
BEAT O35 T IR AT) SRR TRV I 2
FAT IR ] (TS T 1) Gl 1 LA (T
AL 1) 2 A5 A ) K 2 2
BT

1) AKAH:

Shares of HK$0.05 each 19 B i #.0.05%8 G 2 B
Number of shares of the Company
AR Z B EH

Personal Family Corporate Other

Interests Interests Interests Interests
Name of Directors WYL H il A 22 2 )5 HE 42 2 ) B 2 JU A 4
Mr Liu Xiaolong BI/NFE B Nil 4 Nil fE Nil £ (A) Nil fE
Madam Hsu Feng (B) & #l%+(B) 317,178,162 (C) Nil 255,676,326 (D), (E) 206,420,000 (F)
Mr Tong Albert (B) % ¥R S5 (B) Nil 4 Nil fi Nil fi% 779,274,488 (F)
Mr Gu Yiwei e LS e Nil 4 Nil 4 Nil % (4) Nil 4
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(2)

Notes:

(B)

(D)

(E)

The Company’s associated corporation:

Shanghai Zhangjiang Micro-electronics Port Co. Ltd.
(“SZMP”)
Registered capital

(2)

AB W ZHB LM

E# R E TR RA
(T3E 7 2 ] 1)
ik i ¥ A

Amount of registered capital of SZMP

PUE T W A ) Z ki A8

Personal Family Corporate Other

Interests Interests Interests Interests
Name of Directors WYL N BE 23 KB HE 2% 2 vi) B 2% J b BE 23
Mr Liu Xiaolong BI/NHE e A Nil fE Nil fE Nil & (G) Nil f&
Madam Hsu Feng (B) & #4& 4: (B) Nil Nil % RMB50,000,000 (D), (H) Nil %

A R #50,000,0007C
Mr Tong Albert (B) % ¥R e (B) Nil f Nil fi% Nil & (H) Nil f%
Mr Gu Yiwei HEREE Nil fi Nil f% Nil # (G) Nil fi%
As at 31st December, 2010, a total of 779,955,407 shares (being 29.9%) in (A) MR_F—FEL A=+ —H AR
the total issued capital of the Company were beneficially held by Best Central 2 H B AT A A 3£779,955,407 /% (B
Developments Limited (“Best Central”). Best Central was a wholly-owned 29.9%) HiBest Central Developments Limited
subsidiary of Shanghai Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park Development Co., Ltd. (I Best Central ]) B 45 %A © Best CentralZy |
(“Zhangjiang Hi-Tech”). T 5 L v Rk 4 R I B R A PR A ([3R
L)) 2 2 G W g A w) -

Mr Liu Xiaolong and Mr Gu Yiwei were the directors of Best Central. In BI/INBE Se A Je 1 2848 a4 By Best Central Z 3
addition, Mr Liu and Mr Gu were the director and the general manager of H oo WAL > BISEA KA SetE o Bl BRI R0
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech respectively. ZHH AL .
Mr Tong Albert is a son of Madam Hsu Feng. (B) BTREERERL L2 RT -
As at 31st December, 2010, they were considered to be persons acting in concert AZE-RFETFZH=Z4—H o HERE
and held an aggregate of 779,274,488 shares of the Company, representing (R 25 B W B e 9 W 2 — BT BN
29.87% interests in the total issued capital of the Company, pursuant to the 5 3779,274,488 AN T AR > AR
SFO. F] 22 A B B AT AR 29.87% HE i
Madam Hsu Feng held in her capacity as a beneficial owner an interest in (© R LU HERBEAANZ S BEE
317,178,162 shares of the Company. 317,178,162/ A 2w B W 2k o
As at 31st December, 2010, Madam Hsu Feng was entitled to control the (D) RF-FRELA=Z+—H > kL
exercise of more than one-third of voting power at general meetings of Tomson RIEE I A A R A (T AR ) i
Group Limited (“TGL”). WK E=02—U EWREREMNFTE o
A total of 255,676,326 shares of the Company were beneficially held by Cosmos (E) UM 2GR A — B B R A

Success Development Limited (“Cosmos Success”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of TGL, hence, Madam Hsu Feng was deemed to have an interest in the capital
of the Company through a corporation controlled by her.
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Madam Hsu Feng had entered into agreements with her sons, Mr Tong Chi Kar
Charles and Mr Tong Albert, to sell to each of them 103,210,000 shares of the
Company, in an aggregate of 206,420,000 shares, which had been pledged by
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles and Mr Tong Albert in favour of Madam Hsu Feng
as a security for their performance of the duties under the aforesaid agreements.
Pursuant to the SFO, Madam Hsu Feng was taken to have a security interest in

those 206,420,000 shares of the Company.

Subject to the aforesaid agreements and pursuant to the SFO, Madam Hsu
Feng held and was deemed to hold an interest in a total of 779,274,488 shares
of the Company and Mr Tong Albert was therefore taken to have an interest in
those 779,274,488 shares of the Company by virtue of being a person acting in
concert with Madam Hsu Feng.

As at 31st December, 2010, Zhangjiang Hi-Tech held an interest of
RMB183.55 million (being 49.5%) in the registered capital of SZMP. Mr
Liu Xiaolong and Mr Gu Yiwei were the director and the general manager of

Zhangjiang Hi-Tech respectively.

TGL held an interest of RMB50 million (being 13.5%) in the registered
capital of SZMP through its wholly-owned subsidiary. Madam Hsu Feng was
therefore deemed to have an interest in the registered capital of SZMP through
a corporation controlled by her.

Mr Tong Albert was a director and a substantial shareholder of TGL.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors of the Company and their
associates had any interests or short positions in the shares or debentures or
underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations as at
31st December, 2010, which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein (including interests or
short positions which they were taken to have under Section 344 of the SFO)
or which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

=  pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on 29th
May, 2002 and under the Scheme, there were no options granted, exercised,
cancelled or lapsed during the year ended 31st December, 2010, nor was there
any option outstanding at the beginning or at the end of the year. Apart from
the Scheme, at no time during the year nor at the end of the year ended 31st
December, 2010, was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

The major terms of the Scheme are as follows:

Purpose

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards to selected
persons for their contribution to the Group or any entity in which the Group
holds any equity interest (“Invested Entity”).

Participants

The participants of the Scheme include:

(i) any employee or proposed employee (whether full time or part time)
of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity, including any
executive director of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;
or

(ii) any non-executive director (including independent non-executive
director) of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; or

(iii)  any customer and supplier of goods or services to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity who has contributed to the Group; or

(iv)  any adviser or consultant of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity who provides business advice and business consultancy service
to any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; or

(v) any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity or
any holder of any securities issued by any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity.

Nk JBe B it )

ARFAR-FFHETA TR R —IA
W PR ME R ) (T aZ T8 )) o ARIRRZ T > R
FOR-REFTL A= —HILEER I
S PO RE AR A > AT B - RESERAL o FEAF
3£ B O B A A IRF - A R Rt B I 2 1 R AT B
ZVEBHE - BRaz et #1500 > RABE T — %4
A = BIR AR BE R AT ] e ] AR R A
A > Aoy R ECHAT ] R 4 R 2 BT
] 2 P o B AS 2% R AT I 0 AR A
AT H A i A\ R 2 Ry R R T 4 o

WAl # 2 FEEGSCE

H /Y

W at# 2 B 2 R B8 RS 2 N
7 4R (8] B R A R B S A A T i A e A A
(BT 45 E M ) AR B JRK -

W

/\%
2t B 2 2 B A -

ﬁ&&

A AT AT BB 2 ) AT ] P B A
W Z AL R B SRR B O i 2 Rk
W) o AL A AR B AT A B 2 R B AT
P BLE M AL T RATEF 5 5

~
=
=

(i) AEEEATAT A B A R ST ] BT B
W2 AT IE AT S (BT AT
) B

(i) W AHAEEELSRERZAMES &
1] 7 4 B AL Ao 1 B 2 7 84T A7 B 50
TR (It B Y SR B < (B 5 B

(iv) 1A S AT AT B 2 R ST ] B &
A B 1k S il Wl B S T R B
7 A AT AT B B 2 ) A AT T
[P 5 NG

() ARSI A E 2 R ST ] B 8
W Z AT BEOR > BA 4 AT (T R B 2
CEREREVIE eS¢ LA SRR O S
ZHAN

°N
(=]

JE AP

Annual Report 2010 4F.



(55}
[u

[ 373 B [l 35 k|1 PovIWrT (sﬁmp[oH) BIDATY

Report of the Directors

E TR

Maximum number of shares available for issue

The maximum number of shares of the Company in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme must not exceed 160,854,651 shares, being
6.2% of the total number of shares of the Company in issue as at the date of
this Report, unless shareholders’ approval of the Company has been obtained.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and to be granted to each participant (including
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at the date of
grant (the “Individual Limit”). If any further grant of options to a participant
would result in the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
granted and to be granted in the 12-month period up to and including the date
of such further grant in excess of the Individual Limit, such further grant must
be subject to shareholders’ approval in general meeting with such participant
and his or her associates abstaining from voting.

Exercise period of options

An option may be exercised at any time during a period as the Board may
determine which shall not be more than 10 years commencing from the date of
grant of the option.

Minimum holding period of an option before exercise

Save as determined by the Board and provided in the offer of the relevant
options, there is no minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised.

Acceptance of an option

The acceptance of an offer of granting an option must be made within 28 days
from the date on which such offer is made with a non-refundable payment
of HK$1 from the grantee to the Company by way of a consideration for the
grant thereof.

Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price of a share of the Company in respect of any option
granted under the Scheme shall be such price as the Board in its absolute
discretion shall determine, save that such price will not be less than the highest

of:
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(i) the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily
quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant of the
option, which must be a business day;

(ii) the average of the closing prices of the shares of the Company as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the 5 business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the option; and

(iii)  the nominal value of the shares of the Company on the date of grant.

Remaining life of the Scheme

Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general meeting or by the
Board, the Scheme shall be valid and effective till 28th May, 2012. After the
expiry of such valid period, no further options will be granted but in all other
respects the provisions of the Scheme shall remain in full force and effect.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

The following Directors of the Company are considered to have interests
in business which may compete or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group, other than that business where the
Directors have been appointed/were appointed as directors to represent the
interests of the Company and/or the Group, pursuant to the Listing Rules:

(i) Mr Liu Xiaolong is the executive vice general manager of Shanghai
Zhangjiang (Group) Co., Ltd. (“Zhangjiang Group”) and the
president and director of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech while Mr Gu Yiwei
is the general manager of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech. Both of Mr Liu and
Mr Gu are also directors of Shanghai Z.J. Hi-Tech Park Property
Co., Ltd. (“Z.]. Property”). One of the major business of Zhangjiang
Hi-Tech and Z.]. Property is property development and investment in
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park, Pudong, Shanghai (the “Park”).

(ii) Madam Hsu Feng and Mr Tong Albert are chairman and vice-
chairman of board of directors of TGL respectively whereas they are
substantial shareholders of TGL. One of the principal business of TGL
and its subsidiaries has been property development and investment in
Shanghai, in particular Pudong, for years.
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The Group is principally engaged in property development and investment in
the Park, hence, the business of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech, Z.]J. Property and TGL
(altogether the “Potential Competitors”) in the property sector in Shanghai, in
particular, Pudong (the “Excluded Business”), may potentially compete with
the Group’s business. Zhangjiang Hi-Tech is a listed company in Shanghai
whereas Z.]. Property is a subsidiary of Zhangjiang Group, a state-owned
enterprise in Shanghai and the holding Company of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech.
TGL is a listed company in Hong Kong. The Excluded Business is managed
by independent management and administration of the Potential Competitors
respectively. Besides, the Board is independent of the boards of directors of
the Potential Competitors and the independent non-executive Directors of the
Company would assist in monitoring the operation of the Group, the Group is
therefore capable of carrying on its business independently of, and at an arm’s
length from, the Excluded Business.

SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year ended 31st December, 2010.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts for the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company were entered into or subsisted
during the year ended 31st December, 2010.

PENSION SCHEMES

The Company participates in a pension scheme, which was registered under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF Ordinance”),
for all its employees in Hong Kong. The scheme is a defined contribution
scheme effective from November 2002 and is funded by contributions from
employer and employees according to the provisions of the MPF Ordinance.
Should there be the employer’s voluntary contributions to the scheme,
forfeited contributions in this nature can be applied to reduce the amount of
future voluntary contributions payable by the employer.

On the other hand, the employees of the Group in the Mainland China are
members of respective state-managed defined contribution retirement benefits
schemes operated by the local government. The employer and the employees
are obliged to make contributions at a certain percentage of the payroll under
rules of the schemes.

During the year under review, the total amount contributed by the Group
to the above schemes and charged to the consolidated income statement
amounted to approximately HK$150,000 (2009: HK$77,000) and no
contributions were forfeited.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS

As at 31st December, 2010, the following shareholders (other than the
Directors of the Company) were interested, directly or indirectly, in 5% or

more of the total issued share capital and underlying shares of the Company

and those interests were required to be recorded in the register required to be

kept under Section 336 of the SFO:

Name of substantial shareholders

By

4 BB A Z i A B R AT

RoFE-FET A= —H > FHIRER (4
N EEEBRAN) HH A A A &
¥ LB AT AR A B e A b 2 5908 DA L 1 e
dtt > T % %6 HE 4t 78 8 AR G o I 0 B e 49)) 2R
3360 2 KE BRI H T A < Bt A

Number of shares held
(proportion to the total
issued share capital)

Pide A By B H
(s Jak £
BeAZ 4 )

Shanghai Zhangjiang (Group) Co., Ltd.
(“Zhangjiang Group”) (a)
Shanghai Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park

E USRI (SR ) A R A
([5RITEEE ) a)

Development Co., Ltd. (MBRYTHEA ) (a)
(“Zhangjiang Hi-Tech”) (a)
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles (b) W 13554 b)

Tomson Group Limited (“TGL”) (c¢)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

()

The references to 779,955,407 shares were related to the same block of shares
in the capital of the Company which was beneficially held by Best Central.
Best Central was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shanghai (Z.].) Hi-Tech Park
Limited (“Shanghai (Z.].)”) which was in turn wholly owned by Zhangjiang
Hi-Tech in which Zhangjiang Group held more than 50% interest. Therefore,
Best Central, Shanghai (Z.].), Zhangjiang Hi-Tech and Zhangjiang Group were

interested or were taken to be interested in these shares pursuant to the SFO.

By virtue of being a person acting in concert with Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Tong
Chi Kar Charles was taken to have an interest in the 779,274,488 shares which
referred to the same block of shares in the capital of the Company in which
Madam Hsu Feng and Mr Tong Albert were interested or taken to be interested,
as disclosed in the above paragraph headed “Directors’ Interests and Short

Positions in Securities” in this Report.

The 255,676,326 shares of the Company were beneficially held by Cosmos
Success. Cosmos Success was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hoffman
Enterprises Corp. (“Hoffman”) which was in turn wholly owned by Tomson
Corporation in which TGL held the entire interest. Therefore, Cosmos Success,
Hoffman, Tomson Corporation and TGL were interested or were taken to be

interested in these shares pursuant to the SFO.

b R L v A [ B S A A PR ]

GREEFEARAA (HEEE]D (©

it -

(@

(b)

(©
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The aforesaid shares constituted a part of the total interests of Madam Hsu
Feng, Mr Tong Albert and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles in the capital of the
Company as disclosed in the above paragraph headed “Directors’ Interests and

Short Positions in Securities” in this Report and in this paragraph respectively.

Save for the above interests, the Directors of the Company are not aware of
any person (other than the Directors of the Company) who had, directly or
indirectly, interests or short positions in the total issued share capital and the
underlying shares of the Company and those interests or short positions were
required to be recorded in the register kept under Section 336 of the SFO as at
31st December, 2010.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this Report, the Company
maintains a sufficient public float as prescribed by the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year have been
audited by Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who were the Auditor of the
Company for the preceding three financial years.

They will retire at the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
Tong Albert
Director

Hong Kong, 25th March, 2011
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Deloitte.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Rivera (Holdings)
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 38 to 86, which comprise the consolidated and
Company’s statements of financial position as at 31st December, 2010, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

S B Bl

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31st December,
2010 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong , 25th March, 2011
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Consolidated Income Statement

B A AR

For the year ended 31st December, 2010 #& % —F—FF+ - H=+—HILFF

2010 2009
—g-®E  CEEE
Notes HKS$’000 HK$°000
Mt T#i Tt
Gross proceeds from operations K s AR 7 203,556 67,967
Revenue A 7 1,273 891
Cost of sales A (391) (264)
Gross profit TH 882 627
Dividends from available-for-sale AR E 2 BRI A
investments 21,993 8,773
Other income HA g A 9 4,876 5,955
Selling expenses 2 (27) (717)
Administrative expenses TTEC#E (7,079) (Z62)
Net gain in held-for-trading T B B i 1
investments 15,844 13,576
36,489 21,062
Share of results of an associate JRE Ak B ) R A 160,154 47,509
Profit before taxation B AT ¥ ) 196,643 68,571
Taxation BiIH 10 9,577) (2,000)
Profit for the year Ll 11 187,066 66,571
Profit for the year attributable to: AR
Owners of the Company RN SRS ZE DN 186,837 66,286
Non-controlling interests I 1 e I TR 2 229 285
187,066 66,571
Earnings per share (HK cents) BB ZL A G ALD
—Basic — A 14 7.16 2.54

»
o

Annual Report 2010 4F B 4F3t




Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

R R

For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F—FF+ - H=+—HILFF

2010 2009
% ®E CEEAE
HKS$’°000 HK$°000
T#i Tt oT
Profit for the year Y ) 187,066 66,571
Other comprehensive income At A T A £
Gain on change in fair value of AT L B R T (B B ) IR A A
available-for-sale investments Z s 2,612 307,333
Exchange differences arising from WA T O 2 R S22
translation of:
— other foreign operation — HAth i 5P 25 13,455 555
— an associate ——XKEE AT 13,304 535
Other comprehensive income for the year A At 2 T i 25 AR 29,371 308,423
Total comprehensive income AR B 2 hi W 3 AR
for the year 216,437 374,994
39 Total comprehensive income EXLIE a5 Pl I
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ANFIRERFRA A 215,337 374,673
Non-controlling interests JFFE I I R 4 1,100 321
216,437 374,994

25720 B il 3 [k |1 P (SSuIp[OH) esaany




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B A WOk Bk

At 31st December, 2010 A —FFE+_H=+—H

2010 2009
ZR R TR
Notes HKS$’000 HK$°000
M7t T#i Tt
Non-current Assets JEUE B
Property, plant and equipment W3k - W Mk 15 320 SHl
Investment property il <C7E S 17 28,563 28,563
Interest in an associate =N 18 485,364 365,914
Available-for-sale investments A R 19 566,882 547,381
1,081,129 942,209
Current Assets P A
Properties held for sale frEY 2 21,915 21,003
Held-for-trading investments FFERE 20 52,172 12,790
Other receivables and prepayments A i B R R T A+ R T 8,222 11,158
Tax receivable JRE Wi Rt JE 38 -
Cash and bank balances & SRAT 45 B 21 647,736 648,440
730,083 693,391
Current Liabilities i 1K
Trade and other payables and accruals JEEAS B2 5 Bk~ oA e A R
S iS4 22 27,955 25,468
Tax payable JEAT B IE 89,127 85,068
117,082 110,536
Net Current Assets L TR 613,001 582,855
Total Assets less Current Liabilities F80F pE DR B 18 1,694,130 1,525,064
Capital and Reserves BEAR B i
Share capital JieA 23 130,427 130,427
Share premium and reserves J% A9 Ya A8 R R £t g 1,530,851 1,367,685
Equity attributable to owners EN/NEIE ST DN
of the Company JRE A HE A 1,661,278 1,498,112
Non-controlling interests I 2 B R RHE 25 23,852 225%
Total Equity HABE LR 1,685,130 1,520,864
Non-current Liability i By £ 4%
Deferred tax liabilities PRIEFTE B 1E 26 9,000 4,200
1,694,130 1,525,064

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the Board of Directors on 25th March, 2011.

Liu Xiaolong

B /)i

Chairman

E

HmEMBERERCR “F—-—4=A_+xH
o Je) I O ST A HE T o

Tong Albert
BT

Director

HH
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Company Statement of Financial Position

2wl W B R Ut &

At 31st December, 2010 A-F—FFE+_H=+—H

2010 2009
g o®E BT
Notes HKS$’000 HK$°000
Mtz T#i Tt

Non-current Assets FE B
Property, plant and equipment W2k ~ s K 15 = -
Investments in subsidiaries B AN T 2 A 16 1,800 1,800
1,800 1,800

Current Assets W mh
Other receivables and prepayments HoAth R SR R K LA RO 308 378
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE WAL IS Jeg 2 ) I 16 549,111 599,691
Cash and bank balances B4 ARAT 45 21 88,358 94,192
637,777 694,261
Current Liabilities i 1K

Accruals T2 763 775
Amounts due to subsidiaries JREAT B J A ) 30E 16 2,616 2,624
3,379 3,399
Net Current Assets B 634,398 690,862
Total Assets less Current Liabilities F80F P DR B £ 48 636,198 692,662

Capital and Reserves A B i i
Share capital JieAs 23 130,427 130,427
Share premium and reserves I8 A3 i e % At A 24 505,771 562,235
Total Equity HHEZE 636,198 692,662

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for issue

by the Board of Directors on 25th March, 2011.

Liu Xiaolong

B /i

Chairman

Ea

GAMpwmEke R —F—-—F=H - 1+HH

HE o e At o NI B D

Tong Albert
BTH

Director

HH



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

B A BE fi 58 W) R

For the year ended 31st December, 2010 #& % —F—FF+ - H=+—HILFF

Attributable to owners of the Company

AR ERRA AL
Foreign Other Total
Capital ~ currency  Investment  non-dis- capital Non-
Share Share redemption  translation revaluation  tributable  Retained and  controlling Total
apitl  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  profits”  reserves  interests equity
Rbt  EARE LK REGE AW kg AER
/7 S Bt i Bt i Bl AWEE REERAD BEAE  RUER  MER
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
T#L  TH#r  TH#r  TED  TEL FEC FEL FEL TEL TiEx
THE GROUP ALl
Balance at 1st January, 2009 REFFNF-A-RER 130427 307,108 4709 97070 Q7115 3752 600073 1,149,504 0431 L7195
Gain on change in fair value of ML EREATHZ AL
available-for-sale investments s - - - - 307,333 - - 307,333 - 307,333
Exchange differences arising WETHRANELZELEHE:
from translation of:
- other foreign operation - b - - - 519 - - - 519 36 559
—an associate ——FEEL - - - 539 - - - 535 - 535
Other comprehensive income L2
for the year - - - Ls¢ 307,333 - - 308387 36 308423
Profit for the year R - - - - - - 06,286 06,280 25 06,571
Total comprehensive income EREATRGAHE
for the year - - - 1054 307333 - 06,086 374,673 37499
. INE] [k 42
Transfer from retained profits IR e i e 2
of a subsidiary to other HAT R
non-distributable reserve - - - - - 412 (412) - - - b2
Dividend paid (Note 13) MRS (HE13) - - - - - - 608)  (26089) - (26089) ﬁ&
H
Balance at 315t December, 2009 REEFNET A=+ - 4G 130,427 307,108 AT09 ORI D028 7664 6986 LRI w7 LsNsd S
Gain on change in fair value WL EREATREDRE L g..
of available-for-sale investments b &5 - - - - 2,612 - - 2612 - 2,612 [
Exchange differences arising WETAEHRREEZELAR E
from translation of: 3
- other foreign operation - ER - - - 12,584 - - - 12,584 871 13,455
- an associate -—%BEN - - - 13,304 - - - 13,304 - 13,304
Other comprehensive income A A
for the year - - - 25,888 2,612 - - 28,500 871 29,371
Profic for the year R - - - - - - 186837 186,837 09 187,066
Total comprehensive income EERERGEE
for the year - - - 25,888 2612 - 186,837 215,337 1,100 216,437
Transfer from retained profits MEAAMARAEHEE
of asubsidiary to other AT KB
non-distributable reserve - - - - - 339 (339) - - -
Dividend paid (Note 13) MRS (HE13) - - - - - (2170 (5217)) S (i)
Balance at 31st December, 2010 REF-BET AT 1R 130427 307,108 4700 124012 282830 38003 774189 1661278 23852 1685130

At 31st December, 2010, included in retained profits with aggregate amount of

BoB—BEL A=t — A A ARE

HK$114,687,000 (2009: HK$86,853,000) is the appropriation to enterprise
expansion fund and statutory reserve by an associate established in the People’s
Republic of China (other than Hong Kong and Macau) (the “PRC”) attributable
to the Group.

% Al A 45114,687,000% 70 (= & F JL4F ¢
86,853,00075 70) J7 £ A 4 ] HE A i i #E N R
R B O 35 vt SR M) (B ) Bz 2
— RN R 2 A R R I G K Ak E
5 Z 5B o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AR ERER

For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F—FF+ - H=+—HILFF

2010 2009
R R ZEENAF
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T#i Tt oT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEWHY
Profit before taxation I%3% 5 T Y6 ) 196,643 68,571
Adjustments for: BT %
Interest income FE A (4,876) (5,905)
Dividends from available-for-sale investments Al ik E 2 BRI A (21,993) (8,773)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment )3 - f/E KM es 38 53
Loss (gain) on change in fair value of held- HERGEN T ESE R EE
for-trading investments 2 (k) 1,900 (3,269)
Loss on written off property, T - W Rk 2 s 1R
plant and equipment 1 -
Share of results of an associate JRE AL By N ) £ 4 (160,154) (47,509)
Operating cash flows before SEES SR BER e E
movements in working capital 11,559 3,168
Increase in properties held for sale RSN (215) (615)
(Increase) decrease in held-for-trading REERCE (B WA
investments (41,282) 7,122
Decrease (increase) in other receivables At A B R B LA > (B4
and prepayments 2,969 (3,423)
Increase (decrease) in trade and other FEAHE 5y MRk ~ FoAh MEAT B K &
payables and accruals ER AR (E) 2,041 (16,973)
Cash used in operations FHA R 8 16 8 2 B (24,928) (10,721)
Income taxes paid e Bt (4,005) (564)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING JHR 5888 3 ) 2 BL & i 8
ACTIVITIES (28,933) (11,285)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEE W)
Dividends received from an associate EL Wi A 7 2 BRI 54,008 -
Dividends received from available- EL Al i R 2 BB A
for-sale investments 5,104 -
Interest received B s AL, 4,854 5,769
Purchase of property, plant and equipment B - RS Bt (5) 2
NET CASH FROM INVESTING 2 F B ) 2 B AR
ACTIVITIES 63,961 5,767




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HRAEBERER

For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # £ _—ZF—FF+ _H =T —HILFE

2010 2009
it S22 TEREJUE
HK$°000 HK$°000
T T
CASH USED IN JH i 4% ) 2 Bl &
FINANCING ACTIVITY
Dividends paid eI E (52,171) (26,085)
NET DECREASE IN CASH B& KB EFEE A WD T8
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (17,143) (31,603)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS —H—HZBE BRI E&SHEH
AT 1ST JANUARY 648,440 679,336
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SN SRS L S 16,439 707
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS TZAZT—HZBE B E&SHEEH -
AT 31ST DECEMBER,
represented by cash and bank balances RIVER 4 B SRAT &5 B 647,736 648,440
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N
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # % —F—FF+ - H=+—HILFF
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GENERAL 1. R
The Company is a public limited company incorporated in Hong Kong AN Ry — FIRE ML 2 A A
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited FRAHE s B &S &S AR
(the “Stock Exchange”). The address of its registered office and principal AN Bl D T FIR NN P 1L B
place of business is Rooms 1501-2 and 1507-12, 15th Floor, Wing On 3 K F B SE B bk B s TR
Centre, 111 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong. 11198 K & 0 1581501-2 % 1507-
12% o

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the AN R EM AT (AL 2 £%
“Group”) are investment holding, property development and W LB - W) ER R R AE R
investment, and securities trading and investment. HEENMTE -

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. MERIW) e s g vk 7 V8 A

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied a number of new and
revised standards, amendments and interpretations (“new and revised
HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”).

The Group applies HKFRS 3 (Revised) “Business Combinations”
prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition date
is on or after Ist January, 2010. The requirements in Hong Kong
Accounting Standard (“HKAS”) 27 (Revised) “Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements” in relation to accounting for changes in
ownership interest in a subsidiary after control is obtained and for loss of
control of a subsidiary are also applied prospectively by the Group on or
after 1st January, 2010.

As there was no transaction during the current year in which HKFRS
3 (Revised) and HKAS 27 (Revised) are applicable, the application
of HKFRS 3 (Revised), HKAS 27 (Revised) and the consequential
amendments to other HKFRSs had no effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the current or prior accounting
periods.

Results of the Group in future periods may be affected by future
transactions for which HKFRS 3 (Revised), HKAS 27 (Revised) and the
consequential amendments to the other HKFRSs are applicable.

The application of the other new and revised HKFRSs had no effect on
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the current or
prior accounting periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB W WAk B

For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # £ _—ZF—FF+ _H =T —HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. HEJIia] J &6 sk (76 Ve A 5
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS B dE )Y ()
(“HKFRSSs”) (continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised HKFRSs A S5 [ 1 R 4 L RE L DL A A H 7 R
that have been issued but are not yet effective: HE B2 T B ARG B R s P i s
HI)
HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2010 (FH B A R -RERGZ
(BT %) (Rl BB S 2 )
b4 ¢
HKEFRS 1 (Amendments) Limited Exemption from Comparative HKFRS 7 (BB I RS END ARERGERFHAL
Disclosures for First-time Adopters’ AL AL TR B (B B
REQ) 795 2 LB B
HKEFRS 1 (Amendments) Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed (FH BB R AL BRERBEWRRRER
Dates for First-time Adopters® AL AL TR i AR BRHE A
HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets’ (BB I RS END e LT
F7H (BTA)
HKERS 9 Financial Instruments* (FH BB R AL SR TR
H9%E
HKAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets’ (Bl esHEN) F128 TRAEHIE - el iR B 7S
(BiT%)
HKAS 24 (as revised in 2009) Related Party Disclosures® (B e atERD) 43k R 46
(CERAELET)
HKAS 32 (Amendments) Classification of Rights Issues’ (BB aatER) #3295 fibf 2 0 3
(7% <
HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 (Amendments) Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Fib (FRUHERED  RICESHERE MR B;
Requirement® REZHE) S
“R R ) :
HK(IFRIC)-Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Bk (R ESED DR T RSB & &
Instruments® RRZAE) §
— 195 -
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2010 and 1st ! MNEE—FFEELH AR T ——4F
January, 2011, as appropriate —H—H (ZEWE M) SR G
AF B 0 ) A 2K
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2010 2 AZE—FAELH - HEAZMEZ
A BE A P AR
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2011 3 Mo ——FLH—-HREEMGBZ
4 JBE 1 T 2R 2K
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2013 i W oFE - —HSHERRZ
A JE 3 ] AR 3
> Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2012 5 AT - —H - HBHEAZMEZ
A BE A P AR
6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2011 6 W oFE——F—H—HHEMGBZ
4 JBE 1 TR 2R 2K
7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st February, 2010 7 NoFE-FEZH] - HRHBRGZ

4F B ) ) A 8k




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 #E -F—FF+_H =+—HILFE
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments (as issued in November 2009)”
introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial assets. HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments (as revised in
November 2010)” adds requirements for financial liabilities and for
derecognition.

Under HKFRS 9, all recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”
are subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost
at the end of subsequent accounting periods. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their fair values at the end of
subsequent accounting periods.

HKERS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
January, 2013, with earlier application permitted. The Directors
anticipate that HKFRS 9 will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the annual period beginning on Ist January,
2013 and that the application of HKFRS 9 might have impact on
amounts reported in respect of the Group’s financial assets. However, it
is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a
detailed review has been completed.

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the application of other
new and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the results and
the financial position of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments, which are
measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB W WAk B

For the year ended 31st December, 2010 #HE _F—FF+_H =+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEHEOR®)

(continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its
subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated income statement from the effective date of

acquisition and up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used
by other members of the Group.

All significant inter-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries
are presented separately from the Group’s equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-controlling
interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. Prior
to Ist January, 2010, losses applicable to the non-controlling interests
in excess of the non-controlling interests in the subsidiary’s equity were
allocated against the interests of the Group except to the extent that the
non-controlling interests had a binding obligation and were able to make
an additional investment to cover the losses.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s statement of
financial position at cost less any identified impairment loss.

AAR G PB R A AE A W] LA A B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 A W WAk B

For the year ended 31st December, 2010 #E -FE—FF+_H =+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Interest in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant influence
and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in
these consolidated financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, investments in associates are
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associates. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest
in that associate, the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of that associate.

The associate’s financial statements used for the application of equity
method of accounting are prepared using uniform accounting policies
with the Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of an
associate to bring their accounting policies into line with those used in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

The requirements of HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement” are applied to determine whether it is necessary to
recognise any impairment loss with respect to the Group’s investment
in an associate. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
to sell) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the associate are recognised in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests
in the associate that are not related to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 #HE _F—FF+_H =+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position/company statement of
financial position when a group entity/the Company becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in the consolidated income
statement/company income statement.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the three
categories, including financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.
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(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets held for trading. Financial assets are classified as held-
for-trading investments if they have been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near future.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised
directly in the consolidated income statement in the period in which
they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in the consolidated income
statement includes any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including other
receivables, cash and bank balances and amounts due from subsidiaries)
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, held-to-maturity investments or loans and receivables.
Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value at the end
of the reporting period. Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the investment revaluation
reserve, until the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to
be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to the
consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 #HE _F—FF+_H =+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been affected.

A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an available-
for-sale equity investment below its cost is considered to be objective
evidence of impairment.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not be
reversed in consolidated income statement in subsequent periods. Any
increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the investment

revaluation reserve.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment could

include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

. default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or

financial re-organisation.

For loans and receivables, an impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

For loans and receivables, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through consolidated
income statement to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in
the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables and amounts due
to subsidiaries are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and any cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in
the consolidated income statement.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition (continued)

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held for capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of investment
properties using the straight-line method. No depreciation is provided in
respect of freehold land.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in the consolidated income statement in the period in which
the item is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than frechold land are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

Buildings on freehold land are depreciated over 40 years by equal annual
installments.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives and after taking
into account their estimated residual value, using the straight-line
method, at the following rates per annum:
Furniture and equipment 10% to 20%
Motor vehicle 18%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 #E -F—FF+_H =+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item) is included in the consolidated
income statement in the period in which the item is derecognised.

Impairment losses

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost or estimated net
realisable value.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in the
normal course of business, net of discounts.

Revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary course of business is
recognised when the respective properties have been completed and
delivered to the buyers. Payments received from purchasers prior to this
stage are recorded as receipts in advance under current liabilities.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Group’s
rights to receive payment have been established.

Revenue from sales of held-for-trading investments is recognised when
the sales contract has become unconditional.

3.

B )

Yok ~ Wi b3 B i i (4)

Yo ~ 7 BBt E H S A e TR
R AU 5% 7 AN P A R AR A A
i 5 HCTH FfE R o BT D T A 2
AR 4R (1% & Br 159 3K H T3 # B a% IH
H 2 W T (B A 22 B 5 3Rt A O il
PRz IHH 2 W 2 g2 MR A -

WAL M B

TR R > A S B b 2 SR T
(I DU 2 % 6 7 2 5 e BB 4 B
G o Pl Rk IR R 2 AT I AR R
MR T (AL )2 TR 22 U T (A
G 25 T i ) 0 9L D
EV LR

A BE AR A8 1] W (BR8P IH B E 2 IR
T L1 44 22 ) B A% 2 At T i ]
P L 38 0 22 R TR (D S 5 2 5 TR E R
DA 47 52 e k(L s 4L T 2 788 7 2 BR AT
{EL o 900 15 458 [ 546 DRy 8 8 3 O

(ERLEIE S

S LA A T 50 (L
th 2 BAE 0 -

BN Z Wi

W AR % B i s RE U A A Q1B 2 2 - B R
S B F R S A R B S A B A
AR 04R 2 BEWCEKIA -

T R SE 5 A R B A ) S 2 I ATEAR
R 0 3 L 52 I 32 A B O IRp AR o L
B BT i SR IES B A RIE R 51 2
FHUSCRIH o

B B 2 B S A AE A S TR R SO
% K IH 2 MR R AR

B U AR B G A S I
TR iR AR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 #HE _F—FF+_H =+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency
of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective
functional currency at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates
of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in the
consolidated income statement in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
carried at fair value are included in the consolidated income statement
for the period except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income, in which cases, the exchange
differences are also recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars)
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period,
and their income and expenses are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign currency
translation reserve.

Taxation

Taxation represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred
tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated income
statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years, and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of the assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and an associate, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that has been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax is
recognised in the consolidated income statement, except when it relates
to items charged or credited directly to other comprehensive income,
in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Retirement benefits schemes

Contributions payable by the Group to its defined contribution
retirement benefits schemes are charged as an expense to the
consolidated income statement when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

3.
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KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the Directors of the Company are required to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The key source of estimation uncertainty that can significantly affect the
amounts recognised in the financial information in the next financial
year is disclosed as follows:

Valuation of properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable
value. Net realisable value is determined by reference to Directors’
estimates based on the prevailing market condition. The Group has
properties held for sale in Shanghai and Macau, which exposes the
Group to certain price risk. Management is optimistic about the
prospect of the Group’s investment in the property sector and it has been
cautious in formulating and reviewing regularly the Group’s business

plan.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from the prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital, share
premium, reserves and retained profits.

The Directors of the Company review the capital structure periodically
by considering the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class
of capital. When necessary, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues and share
buy-backs as well as the issue of new debrt.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. £&WIH

Al
\o

643730 B [ 35 fuk |1 PoyIwr] (SSuIp[oH) eaoARy

a) Categories of financial instruments a) TR HEN
The Group The Company
AL A
2010 2009 2010 2009
“R-RE —ETNE “R-RE _FTNEF
HK$’000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$000
T#xL TFi#or T#C Tior
Financial assets [LLE 73 0o
Fair value through profit or loss BAPER AR SR
held-for-trading investments ZHERE 12,790 = -
Loans and receivables R R
(including cash and cash (BB 4 &
equivalents) PGS EER) 659,125 637,474 693,883
Available-for-sale investments CIRC i =E'g < 547,381 - -
Financial liabilities LB SR
Amortised cost PEEH B AR 15,668 2,616 2,624

b)

Financial risks management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-for-
sale investments, held-for-trading investments, other receivables,
cash and bank balances and trade and other payables. The
Company’s major financial instruments include other receivables,
amounts due from subsidiaries, cash and bank balances and
amounts due to subsidiaries. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (currency risk, interest
rate risk and equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective

manner.

Market Risks

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks
of changes in foreign currency exchange rates, interest rate and
equity prices. Market risk exposures are further measured by
sensitivity analysis. There has been no significant change to
the Group’s exposure to market risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risk. Details of each type of market risks
are described as follows:

b)
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b)

Financial risks management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market Risks (continued)
(i)  Currency risk

The Group has minimal currency risk as most of the
financial assets or liabilities are denominated in the
functional currency of the subsidiaries that hold those
financial assets and liabilities.

The Company has no currency risk at the end of the
reporting period.

(ii) Interest rate risk

The Group and the Company have minimal interest rate
risk as most of the interest bearing financial assets are bank
deposits. As the Group and the Company do not expect
material fluctuation in interest rate movement, the exposure
to interest rate risk is insignificant.

(iii) Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risks and closely monitor the
price changes.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risks at the end of the
reporting period.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments had been
10% (2009: 10%) higher/lower:

. post-tax profit for the year ended 31st December,
2010 would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$4,356,000 (2009: increase/decrease by
approximately HK$1,068,000) for the Group as a
result of the changes in fair value of held-for-trading
investments; and

6. W H @)

b)
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b)

Financial risks management objectives and policies

(continued)

Market Risks (continued)

(iii) Equity price risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)

. other comprehensive income would increase/decrease
by approximately HK$56,688,000 (2009: increase/
decrease by approximately HK$54,738,000) for
the Group as a result of the changes in fair value of
available-for-sale investments.

The Company has no equity price risk at the end of the
reporting period.

Credit Risks

As at 31st December, 2010, the Group’s and the Company’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group and the Company due to failure to perform an
obligation by the counterparties arises from the carrying amount
of respective recognised financial assets as stated in the statements
of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group will ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover any overdue debts. The Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual receivable at the
end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are recognised for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
Directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which
are deposited with several banks and security brokers with high
credit ratings, the Group does not have any other significant
concentration of credit risk.

With respective to the amounts due from subsidiaries, the
Company’s exposure to credit risk arising from default of the
subsidiaries is limited as the Company expects to recover the
amounts from the subsidiaries within one year and the Company
did not incur any significant loss for uncollected advances to these
entities in the past. The majority of the balance is due from a
subsidiary which is principally engaged in investment holding and
securities trading in Hong Kong.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. &R H &)
b) Financial risks management objectives and policies b) B %5 el Be 4% P H B % R
(continued) (%)
Liquidity Risks i ) 4 B
The Group expects to have sufficient funds to meet its financial ALE B TR A T E L 2 R E
obligations when they fall due. A IRE 05 A5 A R B s i 0
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and TEE I B s B b T AR
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by B RAEREER AL S
the management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate KB4 HTE B KT LARE A AR 42
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group will consider [ 2 B MR SR E R
raising bank borrowings when it is necessary. R o AAE B NA TE E R i T
AT -
Liquidity table oY R
The following table details the Group’s and the Company’s T FRFEIN AL B B A W B &
remaining contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The B2 BT ELZHAE D o HRTIR
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of PEAS 55 1) K AR B AT ek SR A
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group iR P A I R B 2 R AR
and the Company can be required to pay. The table includes both BUETIHE o FREHEFE KA
interest and principal cash flows. BB
less than 3 months
3 months to 6 months Total
Y3 A 3%6M Bt
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T#7x T#x T#7x
The Group AR
As at 31st December, 2010 W_F—-FE+_H=+—H
Trade and other payables JRE A 52 ) B ek B H Al B A R K 17,913 59 17,972
As at 31st December, 2009 REEEZREFZA=+—H
Trade and other payables JEE AT 5 7 M ok B HL Al B AT R K 14,930 738 15,668
The Company p A
As at 315t December, 2010 REZ =T A =+ —H
Amounts due to subsidiaries JRE A5t B B 2 W] SR H 2,616 - 2,616
As at 31st December, 2009 W_EENRET_HA=+—H
Amounts due to subsidiaries JRE A} B J 2 ) 2R0E 2,624 - 2,624
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

c)

d)

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

. the fair value of financial assets with standard terms
and conditions and traded on active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market prices; and

. the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities
is determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The Directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts
of all financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised
cost in the statements of financial position approximate their fair

values.

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments
that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value,
grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair
value is observable.

. Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical
assets or liabilities;

. Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);

. Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. W H @
d) Fair value measurements recognised in the d) A& B R UL R N R
consolidated statement of financial position AR o)
(continued)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has no Level 2 and 3 R R - ACSE I A AR
financial instruments measured at fair value. BRI AT EF 22 &R T H -
Level 1
W%
2010 2009
% -®E  TEAE
HKS$’000 HK3$°000
T#i Tt oo
Financial assets at fair value through AP A AR
profit or loss Z W R
Non-derivative financial assets held e RN M
for trading 52,172 12,790
Available-for-sale financial assets w4k 1 B B o
Listed equity securities TR ARE S5 566,882 547,381 64
Total X 619,054 560,171 2
o
There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in both years. TR {1 4 JBE 5 — R BRLES R 2 [ NI e H;
&
7. GROSS PROCEEDS FROM OPERATIONS AND 7. BB AR E
REVENUE
2010 2009
R R ZEENAF
HK$’°000 HK$°000
T Fi#oT
Sales of properties &Y 278 —
Leasing of properties RrEiER7/E S 995 891
REVENUE WA 1,273 891
Sale proceeds from disposal of held-for- HE B RE Z HE I
trading investments 178,259 57,682
Dividend income from available-for- Al ik R E 2 BRI
sale investments 21,993 8,773
Dividend income from held-for-trading HERE 2 BERA
investments 2,031 621
GROSS PROCEEDS FROM OPERATIONS £ B A M B 203,556 67,967
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. NHEFR
AAEERE FEEERRE » AR A
ZHATHES > TR 2 A B W R RS
Wit K 2% BLET Al 2 R 1 &2 28 1 S
SR

The Group’s operating and reportable segments, based on information

reported to the chief operating decision makers, the Executive

Directors of the Company, for the purposes of resource allocation and

performance assessment are as follows:

Property Development - sales and leasing of properties YA R MR E
and Investment

Securities Trading -

dealings in held-for-trading

wREEEAME - HEMGBEREK
i

and Investment investments and available-for-sale ] it E R G
investments
Property Securities
Development  Trading and
and Investment Investment Total
YRER Wi EE
BB X4 Mk
HKS$’°000 HK$’000 HKS$’°000
T# TF#x T# T
2010 R -RA
65
Gross proceeds from operations  #8 #% H #i 84 %
g — segment revenue —ARBA 1,273 202,283 203,556
é
g: Results e
ffé Segment (loss) profit N ER) A (850) 37,797 36,947
5
2
ol Other income HAb g A 4,876
% Unallocated expenses AT o3 BB (5,334)
e Share of results of an associate JE A Y 25\ 4K 160,154
B P
:iér
§ Profit before taxation % Bt i ¥as A 196,643
2l
2009 ZERENAE
Gross proceeds from operations  #& # I % A4 %
— segment revenue - BBA 891 67,076 67,967
Results ¥4
Segment (loss) profit A ER) i A (1,913) 22,346 20,433
Other income HoAh e A 5,955
Unallocated expenses AT o BB 3L (5,326)
Share of results of an associate - /NI ¥ 47,509
Profit before taxation R R 68,571
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. BEFR w)

Bk 43 BT A B 4 4 RIS 26 R 9 S A5 WA
2 25 KRS ot o 38 2 S st
R B 4 ) S B 53 2 Bt BUR AR o
A3 FE A B AR 4R 80 A1,273,000 TT
(BT I 891,000 70) 2 BHIRFEN
OB EE7 - S B (1) 384 08
E% > WRAFFAPRITHAA - #F
SR - EAG SN A 264 R Hof g A -
6T AT SR R e M 2 AT
fEzwt&E -

Except for the presentation of segment revenue which is different
from the reported revenue in the consolidated income statement,
the accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as
the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 3. For the details
of reconciliation of segment revenue to the Group’s revenue of
HK$1,273,000 (2009: HK$891,000), please refer to Note 7. Segment
profit (loss) represents the results of each segment without allocation
of central administration costs, directors’ salaries, share of results
of an associate and other income. This is the measure reported to
the Executive Directors for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment.

Assets and liabilities

i K B4
BAF A% S [ 45 90 45 43 2 W I

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by

reportable segment: BEZ M
Property Securities
Development Trading and
and Investment Investment Total
YXRER HHEH
BB BB Mt
HKS$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 66
TF#xL T#x T#L
o
— &
2010 —E R P
H
Assets A S
Segment assets A RE 57,858 619,883 677,741 %
Interest in an associate T T A5 N B 2 R 4 485,364 2
Unallocated assets AT oG E 648,107 D_j
Consolidated total assets ARG E 1,811,212 E
Liabilities 15
Segment liabilities STEAE 22,131 4,684 26,815
Unallocated liabilities AT AR 99,267
Consolidated total liabilities EEMATE 126,082
2009 —EF A
Assets E
Segment assets B E 56,625 564,208 620,833
Interest in an associate TN A N B 2 R A 365,914
Unallocated assets APHEEE 648,853
Consolidated total assets HEABEE 1,635,600
Liabilities £1 4%
Segment liabilities NEAE 24,320 — 24,320
Unallocated liabilities ATaEEE 90,416

Consolidated total liabilities

&)
o>
&
pi
T

114,736
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. MNEEF @)

B B £ o4)
T T BHE AN 2 SY IR BB 5 R0

Assets and liabilities (continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and allocating
resources between segments:

BRI — R A ml AR~ B
A7 45 Bk AT A S T e 2 FEAt R UIR
AT HIASS BT A E A B
BRI K

O all assets are allocated to reportable segments other than interest *
in an associate, cash and bank balances and other receivables and
prepayment of corporate function; and

BRIEATBLIA ~ R AEBLIA B R A A
3 T HE 2 H A A R R I TH 4R
RS > BrA B R o e A s
55 o

o all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than *
taxation payable, deferred tax liabilities and other payables and
accruals of corporate function.

i 26k

Other information

Property Securities
Development  Trading and
67 and Investment Investment Total
LIE 309 W HE
: A8 RB% 8t
g HKS$°000 HK$°000 HKS$°000
g F#x T#c F#x
=3
F;:, Amounts included in the measure FEAFHE BB S RSB
g of segment profit or loss or R 1 3IH
= segment assets:
B -
= 2010 e S 28
=
ij Capital additions BERE 5 - 5
Depreciation Ireg 38 - 38
2009 s P
Capital additions HERE 2 - 2
Depreciation g 53 - 53
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # £ _—ZF—FF+ _H =T —HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. f} ﬁ % *4 (%)
Revenue from major products and services 3B 5 BRSO
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from its major DUTR B A B ) 32 B O BORBS A 2 5%
products and services: o
2010 2009
—%mE CERIUF
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#x T
Sales of properties hEYE 278 -
Leasing of properties A 3 995 891
1,273 891
Geographical information b I R
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC. AR LR~ WM KPR -
The Group’s revenue from external customers is based on the location AEEUYELE LB EREL
of properties sold and leased out and information about its non-current AN EWAFESIMT - ARZEER
assets (excluding available-for-sale investments) by geographical location e (BLFEEE A Rl g E 2 Hls) #1702 ;L,_j
of the assets and operation of the associate are detailed below: U EE N EE T it S 480E) E R 2
IR 5
2
Revenue from E
external customers Non-current assets 2
e EBA Fh L By 2
2010 2009 2010 2009

“FR-FF TTNF ZF-FF _TTNE
HK$°000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
T#7x T T#x T

Hong Kong EiE - — - -
Macau Y 56 55 28,822 28,839
The PRC W 1,217 836 485,425 365,989

1,273 891 514,247 394,828
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # £ _—ZF—FF+ _H =+ —HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. f} ﬁ g *EI» (4)
Information about major customers FTHEEPRER

For the year ended 31st December, 2010, two customers from the BE X+ A =+—H14
FE > 2k B Y R e B R
F 2 WA 2 55:A139,00085 0 > %l AR

] #g A Z10%LA | o

Property Development and Investment Segment each had sales of
HK$139,000 and contributed over 10% of the total revenue of the
Group.

BEZZNEFT+_HA=+—H L4
B A HEL B AN R TS
Z W AAE AL B A10%3E L) L o

For the year ended 31st December, 2009, no revenue from transactions
with a single external customer amounted to 10% or more of the
Group’s revenue.

9. OTHER INCOME 9. H bk A

HoA Yl AL 3E F B U A4,876,0004% IC
(ZEEZILE ¢ 5,905,000 70) °

Interest income of HK$4,876,000 (2009: HK$5,905,000) was included
in other income.

10. TAXATION 10. BLH
69 2010 2009
% ®E B
z HK$°000 HK$°000
g Tt T
T
0,\3/ Current tax: AHFLIH
5 Hong Kong Profits Tax RSB 1,051 -
g PRC Enterprise Income Tax rh g A E TR BL 998 881
= PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) R B - b 3 (B 28 -
ﬁ
3 2,077 881
o
a Overprovision in prior years: AT AT BE R AR A A -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax o e 1 SE T A B = (881)
PRC Withholding Tax o B S AT ARG 2,700 -
Deferred Tax (Note 26) IEAERLIH (M iE26) 4,800 2,000
Total tax charge for the year 7 A VE B S AR 9,577 2,000
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 #HE _-F—FF+_H =+—HILFE

10. TAXATION (continued) 10. mJE (%)

The Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) of the

assessable profit for the year.

The charge for the year to Hong Kong Profits Tax has been relieved by
approximately HK$1,039,000 as a result of tax losses brought forward
from previous years. No tax was payable on the profit for 2009 since the
assessable profit was wholly absorbed by tax losses brought forward.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing
in the relevant jurisdictions.

On 16th March, 2007, the PRC promulgated the Law of the PRC
on Enterprise Income Tax (the “New Law”) by Order No. 63 of the
President of the PRC. On 6th December, 2007, the State Council of the
PRC issued Implementation Regulations of the New Law. The New Law
and Implementation Regulations changed the tax rate from 15% to 25%
with effect from 1st January, 2008. There will be a transitional period for
enterprises that currently receive preferential tax treatments granted by
relevant tax authorities. Enterprises that are subject to a PRC income tax
rate lower than 25% may continue to enjoy the lower PRC income tax
rate and gradually transfer to the new PRC income tax rate within five
years after the effective date of the New Law.

The Group’s major subsidiary has its operations located in Pudong New
Area, Shanghai, the PRC. According to the New Law which was effective
on Ist January, 2008, the income tax rate was 18% with effect from Ist
January, 2008 and will be gradually increased to 25% in 5 years. The
income tax rate for the year ended 31st December, 2010 is 22% (2009:
20%).

Deferred tax of HK$7,500,000 (2009: HK$2,000,000) has been
provided for in the consolidated income statement in respect of the
undistributed profits earned during the year by the Group’s PRC
associate attributable to the Group that are subject to withholding tax
upon the distribution of such profits to the shareholders outside the
PRC. A withholding tax of HK$2,700,000 (2009: Nil) was paid on the
dividend received from the Group’s associate for the year ended 31st
December, 2010.

s R A5 BT B 2 Bl R B 4F MR SR
W A 1916.5% (ZEEILF 1 16.5%) °

AR A s T A5 B B < IR B R O 1R AR
7R T B B R 1 T 41038 491,039,00095 TG ©
TR AR A B bR B R S
AR EY > DR Sl 4 7 AE 7 o Ui R 2 A
BLIH o

i H Al ] 325 R [ 7 A 2 B TE ) %2 A Bl )
HERER 2 BATRURGH -

AT EEEEZATANH s PR R
F R4 SR 63 R R A P B A AR B
THBiED - R TELES AN
H - o (B [ 5 o A8 A i A 1 B R A )
BB E S L R AN IR R N
F—H— HAEH15% % £25% - 3%
EAEMBABBE BB EE A
AR o HK R 25% 2 R BT R B
KRB A > AT 450 A AR B A
BRLR S AR H LA SRR R AE R
B EE B TABLR o

AEE 2 FEWE AR Z EBA R R
T AR R - R —FENE—A
—HAERZHBE > B FEENFE—H
—HRZ BB R 518% » W A
FENBHHINE25%  HE T — T4
FToAZtT—HIEFEEZ AR RA
22% (ZEEJLAE £ 20%) °

45 A FIE R E 287,500,000 70 (—F
ZILAE 1 2,000,000 70) 2 A B A B RS,
2R SE R IEAR M o LTI B AR
JRE A A 42 (B AE AR B 2 B A WA AR AR
Z ARG IR I A TR 1] H B B AR R
TRA B 5 R W ZE A 2 Bt o B E
F—FEF T H=Z+—HILERE A%
B S0 M A 4 [ 2 W A D A TR 2 B S
i 32 442,700,000%% T HLHL (B & A
A IE) o

|
(=]
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # £ _—ZF—FF+ _H =+ —HILFE

10. TAXATION (continued) 10. ﬁ]ﬁ; (%)
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before taxation RAEJE 2 B TE B S B A A R 3R 2 BR AL
(excluding share of results of an associate) per the consolidated income A% A (AR S N T ) 2%
statement as follows: BEANE -
2010 2009
R R4 ZEEIAF
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T#x T T
Profit before taxation (excluding share of %% Al il e A1) (O B 45
results of an associate) JRE A T 4 N R 264D 36,489 21,062
Tax at the PRC Enterprise Income Tax i b T SRR R 2 B AR SRS
rate at Pudong New Area, Shanghai of 22% Bl #2209 (—FEILLE - 20%)
(2009: 20%) w2 BLH 8,028 4,212
Tax effect of income not taxable for PRSI 2 Bl s 2
tax purpose (5,344) (1,961)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for AN R HI S Y 2 o T s 2
tax purpose 984 150
Utilisation of tax losses previously not ) 1) ST i R Tl R0 JE e 1R
71 recognised (1,263) (1,520)
~ Overprovision in prior years TR A B R A A - (881)
PRC LAT o Y (B 28 -
% Deferred tax on undistributed earnings o R > ) 2 A DR i ) E A
= of a PRC associate ZIRIERLIH 7,500 2,000
”3 Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries T A ) o [ A4 2 B B s
5 operating in other jurisdictions PNCLE TS 2 (356) -
g
% Tax charge for the year AAE BB TE 37 9,577 2,000
g
:iér
f\? Details of the deferred taxation are set out in Note 26. 0 A T 155 RO B 26
e}
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # £ _—ZF—FF+ _H =T —HILFE

11. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

11. 4 B A

2010 2009
TR R ZEEIAF
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T#C Tt oo
Profit for the year has been arrived AF i A EL R
at after charging:
Staff costs B T A ) 1,909 1,768
Retirement benefits scheme contributions R ARAE AT B 2 AR 150 Z7
Total staff costs B TR A
(including Directors’ emoluments) (EFEEEME) 2,059 1,845
Auditor’s remuneration A2 B F A < ) 954 965
Depreciation of property, plant and W2k - WS Bt
equipment ) 38 53
Loss on written off property, plant WP ~ R RS 2 e
and equipment 1 —

12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’

EMOLUMENTS 12. 3¢ K 0 B 4

RV
N

(a) Directors’ emoluments

(a) HHW 4

jri=g
The emoluments paid or payable to each Director for the year wE - Z2—-FTHE+"H=+—HIE g&
ended 31st December, 2010 are set out below: EF O AT TR ESF ZM4Ae W H;
T =
Salaries, Retirement g
allowances benefits Total E
and other scheme  emoluments E
Name of director Fees benefits contributions 2010
W e BEFA —2-24
W4 e RIBEA sz W4 M %
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
T T#x T TH#L
Executive directors Wi
Liu Xiaolong BN - - = =
Hsu Feng ot - - - -
Tong Albert Vo RAL _ _ - _
Gu Yiwei KA - - - -
Xu Mei [ § - 756 12 768
Non-executive director FBAT kg
Sung Tze-Chun RINE - - - -
Independent non-executive directors  Ji 3 FPUAT i ¢
Liang Jung-chi p 3 60 - - 60
Zhang Hong Bin EER 82 - - 82
Sit Hing Kwok i L 60 - - 60
202 756 12 970
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # £ _—ZF—FF+ _H =+ —HILFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 12, w9 B @ EL 4 a0
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) HIMW 4 &)
The emoluments paid or payable to each Director for the year BE_EZZHWEF+_A=+—HIE
ended 31st December, 2009 are set out below: A O A ST TS 2 A
T
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits Total
and other scheme emoluments
Name of director Fees benefits  contributions 2009
HHEH B EAs BIERGEHN  —ZZEAF
e RHEMEN  FE2 K 4 48 %A
HK$00 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000

T TFiET Ti#T T

Executive directors BT
Liu Xiaolong BN - - - -
Hsu Feng & M - - - -
Tong Albert %I - - - -
Gu Yiwei AR - - - -
73 Xu Mei I ¢ - 749 12 761
= Non-executive director Fotr g
j;‘: Sung Tze-Chun RIUE - - - -
&
% Independent non-executive directors BT EH
15 Liang Jung-chi iy 38 60 - - 60
5 Zhang Hong Bin £V 82 - - 82
g Sit Hing Kwok ALY 60 - - 60
o 202 749 12 963
B
o
Pt
>
i

No Director waived any emoluments for either year. A T 1B AF £ A0 ABE G 2 S 0 AT A I 4
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 £ %

12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’

EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals

During the year, the five highest paid individuals of the Group
included one (2009: one) director whose emoluments are reflected
in the analysis presented above. For the remaining four highest
paid individuals (2009: four), their individual emoluments do not
exceed HK$1,000,000 each and are as follows:

—FEF A= HILFEE

12.

KR B A )

(b) T4 35 v B A L

AR ZR%@E&%H%FMA
TEF-Z (CETNF —Z)E
#H> E@\‘I%E’ﬁ"iifiﬂk ik F Y
S ZRFIUAE UK B A
& B 2 I EL R R B 1,000,000
BT HM&REIT -

2010 2009

—FBE  CEEAE

HKS$’000 HK$°000

T#i Tt

Salaries, allowances and other benefits BN~ RN K HoA AR 846 Al
Retirement benefits scheme BARFR AT 2

contributions 95 57

941 828

13. DIVIDEND

14.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.015 (2009: HK$0.02) per share amounting to approximately
HK$39,128,000 for the year ended 31st December, 2010 which is
subject to approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

In June 2010, a dividend of HK$0.02 (2009: HK$0.01) per share
amounting to approximately HK$52,171,000 (2009: HK$26,085,000)
in aggregate was paid to shareholders as the final dividend for the year
ended 31st December, 2009.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on the Group’s
profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended
31st December, 2010 of approximately HK$186,837,000 (2009:
HK$66,286,000) and on the number of 2,608,546,511 (2009:
2,608,546,511) shares in issue during the year.

No diluted earnings per share is presented as there was no dilutive
ordinary share outstanding during both years.

13.

14.

JBe &,

HEEERRMNEE FZ—-FF+ A
= — H IR 2 AR 00159
T (ZFEFIJUE - Fko.02¥T) - Ak
%939,128,000%5 70 o P 28 o5 Mt SR 18 J
WO E EAbE S FAEE -

AR -FENHCREEE “FEI
A=+ — Hi@ﬁzﬂiﬂ;ﬁﬂxﬁﬁ
J8£0.0285 70 (B FIUAE - B %0.013#50)
A 452,171,000 o0 (= FF L4 ¢
26,085,000 76) TR -

B I 7R

BB EEAR A AR AL @ E
TAE+ A=+ — B ILEEAN AR
A E AL %8 £186,837,00045 76 (=
EFEILLE 1 66,286,000 7C) &EWZE
AT %02,608,546,511 8 (—F R JLLE ¢
2,608,546,511/8%) 51 #& -

PR 2% T 1R 4 BE 1A Sl 406 2 AT T
T > WOl A 5 B g 4 AR A o

N
N

Annual Report 2010 4F £ 4F3




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A W WAk B
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. P13 ~ B B ik i
Freehold
land  Furniture and Motor
and building equipment vehicle Total
I Ve
PER VY SO YT i L

HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000 HK$°000
FH#x T Ti#x T

THE GROUP AEH
COST A
At 1st January, 2009 REZFESE-H—H 599 370 221 1,190
Additions NE - 2 - 2
Exchange realignment E 3¢, 3 2% - 1 - 1
At 31st December, 2009 AEENETZA=+—H 599 373 221 1,193
Additions RE - 5 - 5
Written-off ] - (15) - (15)
Exchange realignment [ 51, 30 % - 10 9 19
s At 315t December, 2010 RZE-FEEFZA=1+—H 599 373 230 1,202
= DEPRECIATION Wi
At 1st January, 2009 REZEENE-A—H 325 265 199 789
2 Provided for the year AE R T 16 37 - 53
% Exchange realignment i 3¢, 3 2% - - - -
=
g At 31st December, 2009 AZEERETZA=+—H 341 302 199 842
3
= Provided for the year R B 15 23 - 38
%ﬁ Elimination on written-off T S IR 3 4 - (14) - (14)
g Exchange realignment HE 5, 74 % - 8 8 16
=
% Ac31st December, 2010 REF-FEFZA=1+—H 356 319 207 882
CARRYING VALUES W T A
At 315t December, 2010 R-Z—-F4E+-H=+—H 243 54 23 320
At 31st December, 2009 AEENETZA=+—H 258 71 22 351

The frechold land and building are located in Macau. DI A ZERERFA 2 T b S A5 AR o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # £ _—ZF—FF+ _H =T —HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 15. %% > ﬁi%‘&%&ﬁ (%)

Furniture and

equipment
15 4R Be il
HKS$’°000
T
THE COMPANY AN ]
COST B AR
At Ist January, 2009, 31st December, 2009 and WoEENFE—H—H —_FEENLE+_H
31st December, 2010 =t—HEZE-FEF+_H=1+—H 27
DEPRECIATION hi#
At 1st January, 2009, 31st December, 2009 and W_FENF—H—H  ZFFNHFE+A
31st December, 2010 = t—HBk_FE-EFEF+_H=1+—H 27
CARRYING VALUES W i M
At 31st December, 2010 HoR—-FETFH=ZT—H -
At 31st December, 2009 RZEENFET+H=Z+—H - 76
B
16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16. % W 2 vl 2 B A g
-
The Company §
A% £
2010 2009 &
- EFTAE L
HKS$’°000 HK$°000 <
T#i T
Investments in subsidiaries RWE AR 2 BE
Unlisted shares, at cost FE A » AR 7,891 7,891
Less: Impairment loss recognised W BRI TE (6,091) (6,091)
1,800 1,800
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE S B JB 2 ] 3B 978,106 1,028,686
Less: Impairment loss recognised W EAERR IR (E TR (428,995) (428,995)
549,111 599,691

Amounts due to subsidiaries JREAST B} 88 2 7] 2k TE 2,616 2,624
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 #E _-FE—FF+_H =+—HILFE

16. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16. ﬁﬁ\ I‘ﬂ‘,g IL\\ ﬁj Z%ﬁ (%)
W FE R BREEREARL
122,000,000 7T Z 3K WA T3 4 415 14 31f7 LA
3.5 AR T B (R 5 48 2 ) e ek 1.5 )
FIE A B R R R R - i oAb Bl
JREAST A Jo8 2 ) K I A SR R B Bt
— A PR A R B A 4R o R R R o

In 2010, the amount due from a wholly-owned subsidiary of
approximately HK$122 million was unsecured and carried at interest
of 3.5% per annum, being prime rate minus 1.5% and repayable on
demand. All other amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and recoverable within one year or repayable on demand.

B > M B 4 4K
T AT~ S — 4 7t I 58
TR th SR I R o

In 2009, the amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and recoverable within one year or repayable on demand.

e R ERR R ]

Details of principal subsidiaries at 31st December, 2010 are as follows:

JBA A IR
Paid up issued Proportion of nominal
Place of ordinary value of issued capital/
incorporation share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
SRR e TR AT R AR A A C AT
W8 2 ) 4 5 mEwY WA GEMEA BRI GEMEARE  RERH
Directly Indirectly
774 H& I
% %
=
g Advance Investments Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 - 100 Investment holding
2 R B2 A ) ; 2t G
=
2 Chiefast Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding
E: P 5 A PR W i 2T BE PR
; Celion Corp. British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Investment holding
i SR AR 13570 BE R
ot
if Coin Kind Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Investment holding
S BEARAF il 10,000% ¢ BE R
i
Dynasty Surplus Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Investment holding
A A R i 10,0003 7 BRI
Forty Enterprises Company Limited Hong Kong HK$20,000 100 - Investment holding
BRMEARAA i 20,0007 7¢ AR
Giant Hero Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Provision of nominee
wilk 10,0007 7T services
A NI § 7
Joker Investments Company Limited Hong Kong HK$20,000 100 - Investment holding
HREBEARAF e 20,0003 7t AR
Kingpart Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Provision of nominee
G B E AR il 10,0009 7T services

1 QA R B
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16. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16. ﬁ% Isﬂ‘,g /L\\ ﬁj Zﬁﬁ (#4F)

Paid up issued Proportion of nominal
Place of ordinary value of issued capital/
incorporation share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
[AIENY S L S L AA WA O
W 4 W) 2 R BEM WA GEMEEA BRI EMEARE  EEEE
Directly Indirectly
HiE [F773
% %
Parklane Industries Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Investment holding
FREHRAMRAR ik 10,000 7C PR
Rivera Holdings (Macau) Macau MOP100,000 - 60 Property development
- Sociedade de Investimentos e LA 100,000 4 and investment
Fomento Predial, Limitada MR R E
) ) A7 )
Rivera Management (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Provision of secretarial
N T (i) A BR A ) s 10,0003 JC and administrative
services
R AL RL 2 R AT R
Rivera (Nominees) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Provision of nominee
JUAT (B N) B BR 2 ) B 10,0009 7T services
AR AR
Royton Inc. British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Investment holding
RS 170 BEZ
Shine Trip Limited Hong Kong HK$4,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
BB A RAF TFits 4,000,000% 7T and securities
trading
REBRREREE
SOFIL - Sociedade de Fomento Macau MOP2,500,000 60 40 Property development
Industrial de Macau, Limitada R 2,500,000 [ & and investment
WM TEBERARAF PEB R R E
Superwell Development Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Investment holding
FERRARRLA e 10,0007 7T el
FigRE EEAR A (M5 PRC US$$16,290,000 - 93.53 Property development
(Shanghai Boulevard Real Gl 16,290,0003 I and management
Estate Co., Limited) (Note) EX I Y &

Note: The subsidiary is a sino-foreign equity joint venture established in the BREGE ¢ 0k B 2 W) B — AR o B S Y R Ak
PRC. BEME -

2 W 2 D 45 A R A 1A A AT I ]
L AT ] R 5 72 2 LS i 5 o

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the end
of the reporting period, or at any time during the year.

N
o

Annual Report 2010 4F B 4F3t
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 #E _-FE—FF+_H =+—HILFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 17. &Y%
The cost and carrying value of the Group’s investment property at 31st AREBEZEYER - FEENERF
December, 2009 and 2010 were HK$28,563,000. The investment —FE+H=+—H2Z A XIEEHE
property is a piece of frechold land located in Macau. £4528,563,000i 70 » sZ I EWEL RN

RRFTLUR A SERER A 2 3 -

The fair value of the Group’s investment property at 31st December, KEBZBEEWER T -FF+ 2
2010 was HK$400,000,000 (2009: HK$288,000,000). The fair value H =+ —H Z 2218 /4400,000,000% 7T
has been arrived at using residual method of valuation carried out by (ZREZ I ¢ 288,000,000 50) ° A
an independent valuer not connected with the Group. The valuation ST T 58 — o B A 4R B I R A 8 ST Ak
was determined with reference to recent property selling prices and BB A SR EAS FHEFH AR - Ak (E Y
construction cost in the property and construction markets. SREMEREENTS 2 BRI EREE

B T 2 58 BN T 78 E o

18. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 18. R4 A v Z B 4
The Group
A AL
2010 2009
% ®E CEEAE
79 HKS$’000 HK$'000
T#C Tt
=
% Cost of investment in an associate TN N ) 2 OB A 214,224 214,224
= Share of post-acquisition profits, R S 4% Ui )
U;E, net of dividends received (FNEEE IS 206,864 100,718
5 Exchange difference arising from translation W AN FREEE A
E; of an associate 2 [ 25 R 64,276 50,972
5 485,364 365,914
i)
o
i
2 Details of the associate of the Group at 31st December, 2010 are as AEFKR —_FE—-FFE+_H=+—HZ
follows: W NmZFEEIT
Percentage
of interest
in registered
Place of capital
Form of registration indirectly
business and Paid up held by the
Name of associate structure operation registered capital Company Principal activities
AR W) A
w8 R K FA I E A
BEAu AR EBHERER B B AR i 2% b FEER
Shanghai Zhangjiang Sino-foreign PRC RMB 370,830,000 37% Property development
Micro-electronics equity joint and management
Port Co. Ltd. venture
IR E T MG E R FE i AR #370,830,0007C 37% VESI Y Y i

AR




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB W WAk B

For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # £ _—ZF—FF+ _H =T —HILFE

18. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

19.

20.

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
associate is set out below:

18. AW 2 v Z RS (4
RS 2 26 2 BB R B

2010 2009
—% B BTN
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T#i TF#T
Total assets W E 3,874,514 2,564,654
Tortal liabilities AR (2,562,719) (1,575,697)
Net assets U HE 1,311,795 988,957
Group’s share of net assets of associate AR [ AL B s N B B VR E 485,364 365,914
Revenue A 1,307,938 119,229
Profit for the year B A 432,848 128,403
Group’s share of results of associate of the year 4 BE A4 B E A 8 2 W 2 3648 160,154 47,509

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

Available-for-sale investments as at 31st December, 2010
comprise equity securities listed in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$566,882,000 (2009: HK$547,381,000).

At the end of the reporting period, all available-for-sale investments
are stated at fair value. Fair values of these investments have been
determined by reference to the quoted market prices.

The investments represent 12.12% (2009: 12.09%) of the ordinary
shares of Tomson Group Limited (“TGL”) which is a company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and listed on the Stock Exchange.

HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS

Held-for-trading investments represent equity securities listed in Hong
Kong.

19. W3t i 4 B

W oE—FEFT H=+—H Al
HEREEEERE LT 2 RAFR
4 FH #1566,882,000% JC (~FF LA ¢
547,381,000% JC) °

TSR > BT A AT BRI DA
FAESINR o %% & 2 N EZEZ B
ik 2 T B AEUA T AR E o

I IE ] B R R R O AR A R
nE ((GEE®R] > —KEMS ST
L A | 8l T o EIP A/ NRE DI 1) ¢
Z12.12% (ZEEJLAFE  12.09%) °

20. B HE
R B AR 2 AR S o

©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A W WAk B

For the year ended 31st December, 2010 #E _-F—FF+_H=+—HILFE

21. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 21. Bla B oAT &i Be
The Group’s bank balances carry interest at prevailing deposit rates ALEH 2 RATHE AL T0.01HE 1218
which range from 0.01% to 1.21% per annum (2009: 0.0001% to (ZZFF LA £ 0.0001EF0.75)8) 2 HAT
0.75% per annum). AR R GHE o
The Company’s bank balances carry interest at prevailing deposit rates ALy A 2 RAT HE B R A F0.01)E F1)HE
which range from 0.01% to 1% per annum (2009: 0.0001% to 0.75% (ZFZIUF 1 0.0001EE0.75)8) 2 BT
per annum). AR R GHE -
22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 22. WA B 5 Wk ~ U fib B A Bk
ACCRUALS X B LB e W
Included in trade and other payables and accruals are trade payables and TEREAT B 5 MRk ~ A B A iR 3 &% T 42
their aged analysis as at the end of the reporting period is as follows: 2 A B EE AT B B R R R A i
RZURE AT
The Group
AR 1
2010 2009
81 R R “EFFNF
HKS$°000 HK$°000
» T T
é 0 — 3 months 0% 3 A - 739
3 4 — 6 months 4268 A = -
Ei 7 — 12 months 7ZE 1218 H - 51
@; 1 — 2 years 15824 2,953 4,604
%ﬁ 2,953 5,394
JE=]
)
1S
= 23. SHARE CAPITAL 23. AR
Number of shares Carrying value
2010 and 2009 2010 and 2009
R -FER R -FER
“ERFAEBRMABAE  FFIEMRMb
HK$°000
T#7x
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each 28 e B T {E0.05 8 T
— Authorised — IR E A 20,000,000,000 1,000,000

— Issued and fully paid — BT AU A 2,608,546,511 130,427
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # £ _-ZF—FF+ _H =T —HILFE

24. COMPANY’S SHARE PREMIUM AND

24, A2 i) B A ik A Sk B ik A

RESERVES
Capital
Share  redemption Retained
premium reserve profits Total
BB dhe SRR A O Ik PR R Lk
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T#xL T#x T#rL T#rL
THE COMPANY AR
Balance at 1st January, 2009 RZEENE—]—H &R 307,108 4,709 281,661 593,478
Dividend paid EIRA RS - - (26,085) (26,085)
Loss and total comprehensive expense E3 A AV EN T
for the year - - (5,158) (5,158)
Balance at 31st December, 2009 AZEFENET A =T —HER 307,108 4,709 250,418 562,235
Dividend paid ELR AT I B - - (52,171) (52,171)
Loss and total comprehensive expense R 2 T B S
for the year - - (4,293) (4,293)
Balance at 31st December, 2010 RE-B—REL A= —HER 307,108 4,709 193,954 505,771

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had distributable
reserves of approximately HK$193,954,000 (2009: HK$250,418,000).

25. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS

RS R > AR\ A R4 UR
i 49 55193,954,0004 70 ( & T L4 ¢
250,418,000%5 JC) °

25. BN L B BT B

(e
N

Annual Report 2010 4F B 4F#

During the year, the Group and the Company entered into the following
significant transactions with related and connected parties:

A B ) S AR A AR A A R
BT AL N EENZS

(a) BTG5

AL R

(a) Connected party transaction

A substantial shareholder has interests in the Company and
TGL. The Company has entered into an arrangement with
TGL, pursuant to which the Group was allowed to use the
office premises and administrative resources of TGL. In return,
the Company is required to share an attributable portion of
the administrative cost of TGL. During the year ended 31st
December, 2010, the administrative cost of TGL shared by the
Company amounted to approximately HK$2,760,000 (2009:
HK$2,760,000). As at 31st December, 2010 and 31st December,
2009, no outstanding balance was owed to TGL.

The above transaction constitutes a continuing connected
transaction but is exempted from disclosure and approval
requirements under the Listing Rules.

A FEBRHEFEANFLGE
SEEAIRESS o AR\ W) B35 B 4R 5T
SE—TEZHE » YR > AN [
R B4 M 2 WA B ¥ K AT
IR o AN FJE b B 4R [ 4y
e FEAG LB 2 AT HCER - MR E
SE-FE+ H=Z+—HILE
> AL F] A4l B 2 AT
2 49 552,760,0004: 7T (~EE
41 2,760,0008 0) o A ZFE—F
HE+ZA=Z+— 0k EENE
+A=Z+—H AN EIER A
W B 4 [ AT AT 300 o

VA28 5 LR A R A ) - S
o i sy i BRI 2 48 R Atk
HEZHUE




o]
W

[ 7 3] B Bl 3 [t 1 1w (sSurplopy) esoany

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A W WAk B

For the year ended 31st December, 2010 # £ _—ZF—FF+ _H =+ —HILFE

25. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Related party transaction

@

(ii)

Trade and other payables and accruals

As at 31st December, 2010 and 31st December, 2009,
included in the consolidated financial statements under
trade and other payables and accruals, was an amount of
approximately HK$10,274,000 due to a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company. The amount is
unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed repayment terms.

25. BN X B B )5 38 5 (4)

(b) BN -3 5

@

HEAT BB MRAK ~ Ul Ao MR
BB

WoFE—FES A=+
HE -ZFZILE+ A
=+—H > EHESHERE
ZHEATE 5 WK~ HoAth e AT
IR K EE BT F— %
#110,274,0003 JC JE £ 4% 28
Al — R B s T 2 IR R
B FKIE o 5% 4 3E B I
P~ S B M R A -

Compensation of key management personnel (i) WHREHUAEME
The remuneration of Directors during the year was as AEFEERMEWNT ¢
follows:
2010 2009
SFBE EELE
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#x T
Short-term benefits FE AR A 958 951
Post-employment benefits IR ARAE A 12 12
970 963

Emoluments payable to the Directors of the Company are
determined by the Board with reference to market terms,
individual responsibilities and performance.

ST AR FE R Y
H 5 2 % i 5 oK
-~ B RN A 2 R e R B
1T 8 5E o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2010 & %

26. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

27.

The followings are the deferred tax liabilities recognised by the Group
and movement thereon during the current and prior reporting periods.

—FEF A= HILFEE

26. 3%t B £

DA 25 A A S o 400 8 S o 0 ] A
B 1 L e Rl 2 R AE B B AR R L ¢

Undistributed
earnings of
PRC’s associate

vp B 0GR 48 A FH)

Z K 5 R ik #

HKS$°000

T#x

At st January, 2009 o EENFE—~H—H 2,200

Charge to consolidated income statement i A A R 40 BR 2,000

At 31st December, 2009 R oEENLET _H=Z1+—H 4,200

Charge to consolidated income statement A G A R 2R 5 7,500
Reverse to consolidated income statement A AR R RS OB S ) A A SR

upon PRC withholding tax paid (2,700)

At 31st December, 2010 R_-2—-F4E+_H=+—H 9,000

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused tax losses of
approximately HK$62,559,000 (2009: HK$68,845,000) available for
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of the tax losses of HK$62,559,000 (2009: HK$68,845,000)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in
unrecognised tax losses are losses of HK$1,480,000 that will expire on
or before 31st December, 2013 (2009: HK$1,468,000 that will expire
on or before 31st December, 2012). Other losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted by the Company pursuant to a
resolution passed on 29th May, 2002 (the “2002 Scheme”). The 2002
Scheme was set up for the primary purpose to provide incentives and
rewards to selected persons for their contribution to the Group or any
entity in which the Group holds any equity interest (“Invested Entity”).
Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general meeting or by
the Board, the 2002 Scheme shall be valid and effective till 28th May,
2012. After the expiry of such valid period, no further options will be
granted but in all other respects the provisions of the 2002 Scheme shall
remain in full force and effect.

27.

AR AR AR ] R R 8 R A
F 2 R P B TE s 18 49 562,559,000 7T

(B EZ LA 68,845,000% J0) B R
%%Z?ﬁéﬂi&mﬁ‘m HIE 48 3l Bt T s 45

62,559,000% 70 (ZFZFJLAF : 68,845,000
W oT) UZ%LL@EIE%‘F 7 E 7R
BEBBREEIR _-F—-=241+2A4
=+ —H Bz A2 2 k181,480, 000‘2%
TG (T EESUAE 1 1,468,0007 TCAFIR &
—HE+ A=+ —HBZ AR
A 5 48 FT T 40 B A 45 o

Jik JBe R it )

ARNFIMRIE-FEZFERH +nHL
PR R R — TR (T2

T AEFHE ) &j:?i_iﬁam
FTEHWEHMET R N EHALEH
B A [ 15 A AT AT B 2 AT ] A (T BT
BEBAE ) 2 BRE B BUE s 2E E - i
EN/NEIR e S N R S o s -2
Jaolf e LA IR B EE B R AR
B AERE _F—-—HFHEHA_+NAH
1E o A RO T AR A N B B AT IR
JREHE > M ZF T AR T B B 5 K TE oAt
&7 W 2T A R o

o)
™~
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A W WAk B

For the year ended 31st December, 2010 #E _-FE—FF+_H =+—HILFE

7.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Under the 2002 Scheme, the Board may grant options to (i) any
employee or proposed employee (whether full time or part time) of any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity, including any executive
director of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; or (ii) any
non-executive director (including independent non-executive director)
of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; or (iii) any customer
and supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity who has contributed to the Group; or (iv) any adviser
or consultant of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity
who provides business advice and business consultancy service to any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity; or (v) any shareholder of
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity or any holder of any
securities issued by any member of the Group or any Invested Entity.

The maximum number of shares of the Company in respect of which
options may be granted under the 2002 Scheme is not permitted to
exceed 160,854,651 shares, being 6.2% of the total number of shares of
the Company in issue as at 31st December, 2010, unless shareholders’
approval of the Company has been obtained. The total number of shares
of the Company issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted and to be granted to each participant (including exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period up to the date of grant
shall not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at the date of
grant (the “Individual Limit”). Any further grant of options in excess of
the Individual Limit must be subject to shareholders’ approval in general
meeting with such participant and his or her associates abstaining from
voting.

The acceptance of an offer of granting an option must be made
within 28 days from the date on which such offer is made with a non-
refundable payment of HK$1 from the grantee to the Company by way
of consideration for the grant thereof. An option may be exercised at
any time during a period as the Board may determine which shall not be
more than 10 years commencing from the date of grant of the option.
Save as determined by the Board and provided in the offer of the relevant
options, there is no minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised. The subscription price of a share of the
Company in respect of any option granted under the 2002 Scheme shall
be such price as the Board in its absolute discretion shall determine, save
that such price will not be less than the highest of (i) closing price of the

27. W B HE 1 B (a)

W =R ZAEFE > EHERT LR
N L8 R - ) A S BT AT R B 2
) AT AR T 4 R 2 AT AT A B B
B (Rim 2R3k » 3% A4 BT
A B O R ST o] T 45 & M 2 AT T AT
5 (i) A4S AR AT Aol ) B A ) SAT o]
P G 2 AP IE AT S (B IE 0
SEFEBATER) 5 o) W A AL EAE
B R Z AT &5 K i A8 SE AT A 1 B
7 T B AT AR T 4 R R 4t ) B IR S
ZHERER 5 B (iv) ] AR 4 AT AT AL B 2 A
ST ] T 330 WA B AL SRS o ol B SR
T ) R S 22 A 4B AT AT 3 B 4 ) BAT AT
e 1 P DN A R A PN
AT o] 15 B 2 7 S AT o] BT 4% R 2 AT
] B3R > Bl A 4 AT AT AR B 2 7] BAT AT
BT B GRS BT AT AT T o 5 2 AT A
A o

WA N E B R M AR
T ARG H A] Bl 2 M T B AT
Z AN F A e e B A AR O T AR
160,854,651/ » BljA —F —FF+ 1
=t —HAANRZEBITRMER
6.2% o TR 2 HEEBER BB
HIEAEAT =R A A 4% S = 2
W R (LG E AT R W RAT ) T
DAAT A T B AT B B8 AT 2 A0 m) B4 48
B NEREER B RS H 2 AN
EE AT B 2 19% (TR B _EBR 1) o
1] S B 3 FEAT 4% H B a8 1] 1 PR 2 s
RE » BIZE R R s AE SR R & LAk vE > T
HRSHE RS N LYEAES LK
FERTHE -

R NZHIR R I i 2 e Rt28 H A
f H e 0 RO > I e AR 2 R S A 1
TG > R B MR T B SBOHE 2 AU R
AN TR (8] o i BEHE T £F B R R E Y
Y THT P BB S AT 6 - % D TR B AR
W J B R T R AR o BRI R
AP E SR AT B BB HEE £32 1 W P R R
G Sl A AT I I AT (o 2 6
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2t 0 A Ao S SBORE T & > AR R IR
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

28.

29.

shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on
the date of grant of the option, which must be a business day; (ii) the
average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets on the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant of the option; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares on
the date of grant.

No options were granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the 2002
Scheme during the year ended 31st December, 2010 and 2009. No
options were outstanding under the 2002 Scheme at 1st January, 2009,
31st December, 2009 and 2010.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance in November 2002. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control of an
independent trustee. Under the rule of the MPF Scheme, the employer
and the employees are obliged to make contributions at the specified rate
under the MPF Scheme.

The contributions arising from the MPF Scheme charged to the
consolidated income statement represent contributions paid and payable
to the MPF Scheme by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the
MPF Scheme.

The employees in the PRC are members of respective state-managed
defined contribution retirement benefits schemes operated by the
local government. The employer and the employees are obliged to
make contributions at a certain percentage of the payroll under rules
of the schemes. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefits schemes is to make the specified contributions.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

For the year ended 31st December, 2010, the Group elected to receive
scrip dividends of HK$16,889,000 (2009: HK$8,773,000) in lieu of

cash dividends from the Group’s available-for-sale investments in TGL.

27.

28.

29.

i B B ik B o4)

P8 S H) 18 W2 BT A F i (8 3% B 81 i
iy 2 W B 5 (i) 72 452 4 S RO HE B BT IDS
185 & e B < P 4 3 £ 6 o 51 B £y
W T B 2 - 285 X (i) BB 43 TR 4% T e
REHHZHEE > =FZREH -

R FE AR RRE E %
R TN = IR
A AT~ R
KA IR E R R BR
NE—H—H - “EEERF
G SR H WA R T
R <

38 P A it

ASEFA F T AR — AR o il
P23 T B A6k 1)) 2 B — TECOR 1R 8
MEnt# ([@ieRt#])) - |
CEEBEAERZEREDFTEA - A
i WACHPNYE 375 WS i) 3
MEwtE 2 BA - R LR B3 A /AT
58 A & wH B AT W Y LU AR AR K e

T AR R AT R 2 B R e w3 2 3
A4 A 4 1 4 5 AR B A R RT A 2
LU A B AT B A R AR < w3 2 Rk o

A AR ) 2w A B 8 2 1R A Ty BORE
T 2 10 5 A H R I OB IR AR A B
BCE o AR BRI - B KR B A
FALHH & 24 T 1 70 LAk Ak« A&
B2 [ B A % S5 AR AR ) ) 2 fE— AT
T AE AT B i

HERIERERY

BEEF-FTE+ H=1+—HIL4%
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PG EERZ it ERE 2 HERS
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Schedule of Principal Properties

EEYER

At 31st December, 2010 A-F—FFE+_H=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP AL ¥ 2k
Investment property B E
Approximate
Gross gross Estimated
site area floor area Lease Group’s Stage of date of
Description Lot number (Sq.m.) (Sq.m.) Use term interest ~ completion  completion
] 3]
Bwist OB Rt RAEH it
Wk WERER  CFHX) CPAK) ik RLAEE ZHE 56 I B AR ]
Nossa Senhora Do Carmo, 8869 and 5,255 20,500 Residential Frechold 60% Vacant Pending
S.J., Taipa, Macau 10032 land for review
R B T O A 8869 % 5,255 20,500 e KAKERE 60% 7 B R
10032
Properties held for sale RRELIES
Approximate
gross floor Group’s
Description Lot number area (Sq.m.) Use Lease term interest
1L & 44 B i A%
2 S B % T8 (P75 %) ik A& 4 ZHE%
Carparks, Phase II, Tomson Beautiful Lot I and 10,107 Carpark Long term 93.53%
Space, No. 56 - 156, Lane 50, Guang Lot 3, 17 Jiefang
Lan Road/Long Dong Avenue, Zhangjiang
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park, Pudong Hi-Tech Park,
New Area, Shanghai, the PRC Pudong New Area
H g ¥ T T [ R T e B R T SRR [ 8 T e B R [ 10,107 HA =3 i 93.53%
FERKHE /W B8 50756 % 1563k 1785 e K3
Vi b 5B B A
Shop A on G/F and Basement of Block 1, 10258 1,875* Commercial Freehold 60%
Shop A on G/F and Basement and Shop F
and G on G/F of Block 2 and Carparks nos.
18 — 24 on Basement, Edificio Tao Un,
Caminho da Povoacao de Cheok Ka,
Taipa, Macau
VL 5 T T A R Bk [R5 — R 10258 1,875* [HES KAERE 60%
AR AL R R~ 5 T R A B
JHJsE ~ 3R F R Gl fr B s iRy 2
HF18F 2455 B {7
45 Shops on the G/F and carparks on 21559 1,586* Commercial Short term 100%
Podium Level, Edificio Centro
Commercial Pat Tat, Edificio Pat
Tat Sun Chuen, Avenida de Venceslau
de Morais, Macau
PR AL K G B R R B R 0 T 21559 1,586* LES R 100%

A4S &6 b2

*

Excluding carparks
N



Schedule of Principal Properties
EHEPYER

At 31st December, 2010 A -F—FFE+_"H=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY AN ASSOCIATE BB ARG ZYE
Properties under development FR PR
Approximate
Gross gross Estimated
Lot site area floor area Lease ~ Group’s Stage of date of
Description number (Sq.m.) (Sq.m.) term interest Use  completion completion
WEMER  BEAMME A% itz
G wEHEE  CPAK) wECEGR) RBEN 2R Mg ZEEB 6 H
3 parcels of land Lot 41, 212,346 356,628 Medium to 37% Residential, ~ Residential:
situated at Lot 41, 10 Jiefang, long term commercial - Phase [II B 2nd quarter
10 Jiefang, Zhangjiang and other construction has of 2011
Zhangjiang Town, Town, Lot 1, use been started in
Lot 1, 26 Jiefang, 26 Jiefang, November of 2008
and Lot 1, 27 Jiefang, Zhangjiang
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Hi-Tech — Phase [V 2012-2013
Park, Pudong New Park, Pudong construction has
Area, Shanghai New Area been started in
the PRC and Lot 1, December of 2009
27 Jiefang,
Zhangjiang Commercial:
Hi-Tech Park, - Phase I1, Note 88
Pudong Shanghai
New Area Chuan Qi
is under
planning

B L R R i 3R Hr [ 212,346 356,628 HEERY 379% FE-MER HFE:

Annual Report 2010 4F B 4F3t

RIL#10f 41 > RILH Hpx —$=#slEctE —F——F
RILHRHEE  r0fb41E “EFFNE B
26T R R T I +— AR
whYilEzZ  RILEREE L8
LR 26155715 )
w7 —EugeE —F-CFF
“ERNE “Z-=f
T AR
L8
LEX
— LigEE =M i3
TERL
Note: The development plans are still under review, the completion time for these B s - B st e A ST b o B A v TH T I &

property projects cannot be estimated at this stage. W 2T H 58 B2 W o
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Schedule of Principal Properties

ETHEHPER

At 31st December, 2010 A-F—FFE+_H=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) BEARRAEZYE @
Properties held for sale (ERE/E S
Approximate
gross floor area Group’s
Description Lot number (Sq.m.) Lease term interest Use
B 44 48 A4
Wk b Bt 5 9% WA CF-J oK) RLA 4R ZHEE Jjig
Carparks, Phase II, Lot 1/4, 27 Jiefang, 27,454 Long term 37% Carpark
Zhangjiang Tomson Garden, Zhangjiang
No. 17, 22, 25-32, 36, Hi-Tech Park,
Lane 825, Chen Hui Road, Pudong New Area
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park,
Pudong New Area,
Shanghai, the PRC
H B 9 SRR T SRR [ 27,454 =M 37% HAL
TRV = B [ R VL = B [
JRUE % 8255717 ~ 22~ 2745 951/4
25%32 ~ 365
TR VL B 2 — W EL A
Carparks, Phase III A, Lot 1, 27 Jiefang, 16,316 Long term 37% Carpark
Zhangjiang Tomson Garden, Zhangjiang
No. 68, 69, 72, Hi-Tech Park,
Lane 828, Chen Hui Road, Pudong New Area
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park,
Pudong New Area,
Shanghai, the PRC
W i TH R [ 16,316 = 37% HLfL
T BT [ RV = B [
AR VL BB [ 271 i1
JRIE 8287768 ~ 69 ~ 725K
TRV B EE
= AR EL{



Schedule of Principal Properties

ETHEPYER

At 31st December, 2010 A -F—FFE+_H=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) BB ANKEEZYE @)
Investment properties #E5EYE
Approximate
gross floor area Group’s
Description Lot number (Sq.m.) Lease term interest Use
B 45 48 Wt A4
Wk WBH  wmRECEIR) RLAAE ZHEf M
Phase I, Zhangjiang Micro-electronics Lot 1/2, 26 Jiefang, 14,517 Medium term 37%  Commercial
Port, No. 690 Bibo Road, Zhangjiang
Zhangjiang High-Tech Park, Hi-Tech Park,
Pudong New Area, Pudong New Area
Shanghai, the PRC
H k] s i SR 1A {1 SR [ 14,517 Gkl 37% [LES
TR VL e B ] [ TR UL = BB I
I BE6909% 26f551/2 1
SRIYLINE T s —
Phase II, Zhangjiang Micro-electronics Lot 1/2, 26 Jiefang, 82,457 Medium term 37%  Commercial
Port, No. 690 Bibo Road, Zhangjiang
Zhangjiang High-Tech Park, Hi-Tech Park,
Pudong New Area, Pudong New Area
Shanghai, the PRC
H k] 9 i SR 16 SR [ 82,457 i 37% [LES
TR VL = B I TR UL = BB ] I
K G6909% 268 551/2 1
SRVLINTE T s —
Phase I, Shanghai Chuan Qi, Lot 1/6, 26 Jiefang, 26,492 Medium term 37%  Commercial
No. 635 Bibo Road, Zhangjiang
Zhangjiang High-Tech Park, Hi-Tech Park,
Pudong New Area, Pudong New Area
Shanghai, the PRC
H k] s SR 1A 1 SR [ 26,492 Gkl 37% [EES
TR VL e B I TR UL e BB e
I 63598 2615 5i1/6

it A — 3

\o
=]
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Five-Year Financial Summary
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT g B

Year Ended 31st December
BET-H=Z1+—HIE4EE

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
CEFAE CEBLE CFIAE CFTAE SRRk
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000
FEE  THEE  TEE T TE#E

Gross proceeds from operations A A 372,954 490,182 37,887 67,967 203,556
Profit before taxation B Bt i e 71 233,275 305,546 33,672 68,571 196,643
Taxation B (69,338) (75,714) 441 (2,000) (9,577)
Profit for the year A S i A 163,937 229,832 34,113 66,571 187,066
Attributable to: SR
Owners of the Company AnrER A A 159,849 220,803 34,202 66,286 186,837
Non-controlling interests 2 IR M R A 4,088 9,029 (89) 285 229
163,937 229,832 34,113 66,571 187,066
91
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL B W R DL R
POSITION
At 31st December
Rt+=H=+—H
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

SEERE CBBLE CERAE CFTAE SRRk
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000
T TG TG TiE T#E

[ 73] B[l 3 [t 1 Pvreur] (sSurplopy) esoany

Property, plant and equipment W~ B B 456 422 401 351 320
Investment property REW* 28,563 28,563 28,563 28,563 28,563
Interest in an associate AW A F 2 Rk 306,960 334,506 317,870 365,914 485,364
Available-for-sale investments ERUE ey 326,976 478,501 231,275 547,381 566,882
Net current assets MENEE 367,937 554,644 596,046 582,855 613,001
Total assets less current liabilities B R B A M 1,030,892 1,396,636 1,174,155 1,525,064 1,694,130
Equity attributable to owners EN/NGIE ETES R DN

of the Company A 1 £ 1,016,794 1,375,431 1,149,524 1,498,112 1,661,278
Non-controlling interests I I P HORE 45 14,098 21,205 22,431 22,752 23,852

1,030,892 1,396,636 1,171,955 1,520,864 1,685,130
Non-current liability A A - - 2,200 4,200 9,000

1,030,892 1,396,636 1,174,155 1,525,064 1,694,130
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